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Introduction

During the depression years of the 1930s, President Franklin D. Roosevelt initiated dozens of
programs to employ the unemployed workers of America. Among the programs was the Works
Progress Administration, and within that was a sub-program for out-of-work librarians and
historians. The result was a large number of documents of value to genealogists. The problem is,
many of the documents never made it past the manuscript stage. They exist in only a few copies in
local archives, hard to access by researchers. The McCann and Hinkel book is one of these.

The Livermore-Amador Genealogical Society (L-AGS) has had a policy for many years of
publishing the contents of local archives in a form accessible to genealogists. Results of that policy
can be seen on the Web pages

http://www.l-ags.org/pubs.html
http://www.l-ags.org/databases.html.

Our reproduction of parts of the McCann and Hinkel book is the latest addition to this collection.

History of Rural Alameda County was originally created in two large volumes of 807 pages in all.
The physical size is deceptive: each page is a double-spaced, typewritten carbon copy, on one side
of the paper, with wide margins. We found only four copies of the book in existence, although there
may be others. One is in the National Archives, two are in a locked room at the Alameda County
Main Library in Fremont, and the other is at the Sutro Library in San Francisco. We borrowed the
The Sutro Library copy for two weeks on interlibrary loan to carry out this photocopying project.

We scanned 148 pages out of the 807 in the books. These include the chapters devoted to
Washington Township, Livermore and Pleasanton Townships, and Eden Township, as well as
introductory pages and the bibliography. Only Murray and Pleasanton Townships, the home region
of L-AGS, are still partly rural; the rest of the county is primarily urban. Aside from these 148
pages, most of the book is devoted to subjects without much genealogical interest.

Unfortunately, the Sutro Library volumes are poorly legible, probably because the pages were low
in the stack of carbon copies. We used digital processing to enhance the readability of the images.
Even then, the type is not clear enough to allow optical character recognition. If that had been
possible, the digital files would have become small enough to post on the L-AGS Web site; as it is,
only publication on paper is feasible.

George Anderson
Rose Marie Phipps
April 5, 2008
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FOREWORD

For many yooars there han boon definite noed for a
hintory of tho rural, as distinguishod from the
urban, dovolopmont of Alamodn Countys. Tho exton-
sive work of the County Libr in rural districts
nado this noed very apparont, but the at ox-
ponse of rosocarch, writing and forbade
::v atteapt to produce a mural history of the type
w‘“.

The advont of the Viorks Progress Administration
finally made the undertalcing possible and I wol=-
comed the opportunity of ropresenting the County
Boamxrd of Supervisors as sponsor of a projoot for
writing tho History of RMural Alameds County. The
work was brought to a puccessful conclusion undor
tho able diroction of projoot suporvisors in whom
tho sgggsors had groat confidence and I foel sure
that 8 confidonce will bo vindicated by roadors
of tho historye

Tho sponsors wish to oxprouss to tho Fedoral Govorne
mont tholr doop appreciation of its assistance in
maldng this history possiblo, and their cordial
thanks to the local Vorks Progross Administration
torji.tg holpfulneas throughout tho course of tho
projecte

Mary Barmby, Librarian
Alezoda Com’zcy uhru-y:
Oalddland, California,
Augunt 15, 1037.



PREFACE

J\mg the projoct ppecifications for the Hipt of
Fural Alemada County it was set forth that m%

history,

" e esOVOry posoible typo of data will
be consldored, ths moasure of value
boing whothor any gilven ovent was an
Instrument in sghap the destinles
of tho county and the people thoroof,"

At the very inception of thla history thorefore, tho

logicel necessity of discriminating in the seloction

g{ higtoricel date was enforced by & positive diroce-
Olle

The history of a county is qulte obviously differant
from the history of some great state or nation, 7Ths
higtory of a nation ls the narrative and analyais of
groat events and distingulshod charscters moving a-
croos the stage of the entire world, while the story
of tho county is a clwronicle or onumeration of losaor
oventa and genorally of less dominant personalities
obgerved in a loocal sotting, IHHense, in tlie annalas
of tho county the subject matter wlil be, for the
most part, a mess of minor details related only ro-
motely to tho vasl movements of nablonal life, bub
novertheoless importent in thelr bearing on local

hilstorys.

In pccordance with the terma of the projoct quoted
above, it was therofore necossary, in writing tho
History of Rural Alameda County, £o seloct from an
enormous quentity of data only such types as might
geent £o be "instrumonts in shaping the deatinies of
the County"s Tho history was produced in o period of
six monthe through the efforts of g rosowrch,; writing
and oditorial stacf of twonby membors. It will be
obvious that on the basip of time alone, great care
ed to Lo oxorcised if tho narrative wore to inolude
essential deta pertaining to the origin and dovalop-
mont of tho county without bLocoming overloeded with



vi

o mass of moroly factual debella. Previous historion
enbraced m vast samount of dotmil with a minimm of
order and pubordingtlon, and it is sincerely bolleved
that this listory of Rural Almmedn County is the firsbt
logical and oxderly prosentation of ossontial tronds
in tho origin andé developmont of the county in its
mural aspoots,

o attempt has boen mede to enumerate all of theso
minmutiae which, while they ars of undoubted iInterast
to old families in the ooung'{, noverthelesn refiard the
forward movement of county history as a whole, Vhile
not adher plavishly to a chronologlcal ordor, the
prosont history sooks to offor an adoquate muavey of
what rural Alamoda County wap in the beglinning, how 1t
dovoloped and what it is to-day., Tho definitive his-
tory of tho entire county should manifestly includé a
substanticl i¥ not a preponderant amount of data on-
tiroly uwrban in character, btut it must be emphasiged
that such data have no proper place in the mural pice
turs. Financo, for oxamplo, has a profound, far-
roaching otfooé on tho ma:t daovelopmont of any counbty,
but financial organizetion and enterprise have been so
largely urban that, howover importont thelr effocta
may have boen in rmural districts, cannot bo. In-
cluded in the account of rural activitiess Therofore
financo as a ppocisl topic has beon omitted. ain,
the part played by mwal Alamedn County in the Vorld
Var wan distinotive and worthy of pormanent record;
but rural participation in the war was uvnified with
tho participation of the whole comnty, both urban and
rural, that it bolongs in tho more oxéenaivo annals
of the urban achicvomont,

While tho hisbtory of the Spanish and Moxicen porlods,
of' Alamoda County hist are excluded by tho gpeoifi-
cations of the projoot, it has bocn nocossary froguont-
ly to glance back et those perlods to estmbligh the con-
t{m.u.ty of later events,

Caldand, California,
August 13, 1037,
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Washington Township



WASHINGTION TOWNSHIP

Within the boundarion of liashington Township lie
gomo of the moot fortile acres of ilameda County. ‘The
Conot Hango mounteins which riso along tho eastern
side of the towmnaohip, prosent on their westoxrn slopos
poil and climatic conditions poculiarly adapted to the
oculture of vineyards and orchards, Here thoro is a
bolt about two milop wide and twolvo miles long whore
damaging frosts aro all but unknown. 7ho soil in the
noighborhood of Mission San Jose is adobo about four
foot thiok rosting on & gravolly subsoil whioh provides
porfoot drainage. ;

fieat of this bolt, which bogins at an elevation of
about four hundred feot, a rich plain guntly slopos in-
to the palt marshos bordering the boy and through these
gwvamps turbid orecke meandexr slugglishly, affording con-
vonient landing placos for boats. But tho tommship haa
a largor stroam as well. Aftor draining the Sunol and
Iivormore Valloy, Alameda Creek debouches from o ocanyon
above Nilos and through this rogion follows 2 wostward
gourse to tho bay.

Horthonot of Mission Sen Jopo, Misslon Pass =
through which countless minors trokked to Stockton and
the minop in gold-rush days - cleaves tho mounteine
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end emerges nopr sSunol in Pleasanton Townehip. Like a
sontinel guarding the pnes and many fertile aores to the
enst and went, Misoion Peak ripges nearly throce thoueand
feat above the bay. Towards the west along the bay
shore, lies a pooullar range of low hilla called by the
Spuniards Los Corritos but knowm in later days as Coyote
Hills.

Such is o hasty and very general desoription of
this favored ocountry-nside. North of it lies Eden
Towmahip and west of it the wators of San Franolsco Bay;
on tho cast is Murray Township end on the pouth Santa
Clara County. The average width of the main wvalley is
six miles and the total arca of the township is 186.7
square milesa or nearly 120,000 aoroe.

A complete history of Weshington Townghip would
include on aocount of tho Indians ond or‘the Spaniaxrds
who left thore such intercsting monumants and reliocs.
But their atory has ofton bsen told and need not bo re-
peated here., At Mlssion Sen Joso the two races mot on
common ground. The pationt endeavors of the Franclscan
Fathors built a oivilization out of the toil of Indiens
vhom they induced to accept a life of disoipline and
labor. For the loss of their frecdom howover, the
Indians reooived from the padros a greater measure of
soourity and a highor standerd of living,

Thexre are difforences of opinion concerning the work



of tho Misoion fathors, but ono thing all muot acknowledgo -
thoy wore a courasgoous, dotormined, ond oroative little
band of mon, Hothing short of thoir heroic solf-gaorifice
could have conquered the wilderness that washington Town-
ghip was bofore thoir coming.

Migeion Son Jose was founded by Fathor Lasuon on
Trini ty Sunday, June 11, 1797, in a pleasant spot whoro
gardons, vinoyards, and orchards might flourigh. It soon
grow into ono of tho most prosperouc of tho mission os~
tablishmonto, boonuss around it was a vast arca capablo
of yiolding good oxops of grain and of pupporting hoxdas
of cattlo, sheoop, and horsos, within a yoar thirty-
throo neophytos wore toiling at wvarious projoots laid
out for them by tho padros end were learning o now soolal
and spiritunl way of life. After thirty-four yoars that
little group had grown to a mission tlooi: of noarly five
thouesand Indiens end in tho interwvening years 6,737 had
boon baptizod end (sinco tho Indiens, as Father Duran
reported, "arxe as fragile ao glass") 5,100 had died.

The activitios of the Franciscans rocachod far boyond
tho oonfinos of the mission proper. William Heath Davis
illustratos thio in his account of doalings with tho
fathors at San Jose and Santa Clara. "In tho yoar 1844,"
he writes, "I rocoiwed from tho fathor in chargo of the
Mioosion San Jose sovoral thousand dollers worth of boaver
end land-otteor akins which had beon colleoted by his



Indians on tho Sacramonto and San Joaquin Riwvoras."

lore intorosting porhaps s his report of a conwvorsation
at tho mipoion in 1843 or 44, during which the supoxiox
"montionod to me his Jmowledge of the existonce of gold
in tho sSaoramonto Valley as a great seoxot, roquiring
me to promise not to divulge it." Fathor Mexoado of
Jisoion Santa Clara told Davis the same story, and added
that this information sbout gold came from the Indians.
#ith prophotio insight, Father Mercado forosaw tho doom
that ovorshadowod tho mission regime, if tho soorot of
gold woro ovor divulged. Ho felt certain that, onco it
was known that gold wns hidden in the Califorania hills,
Amordoan immigrants would overrun and dominate tho
country, and Protostantism would retaxd tho sproad of
the Catholic faith. Ho said all this would one day come
to paso but if no inducements were offored "'the ochango
might not tako place in his time.'"

Boforu tho Amorican inwvasion, tho socularxization of
tho misasions bogan to dostroy rapidly what tho padroo
had bdbuilt up through so many laborious years. Jamos A.
Forbos, tootifying before the United States Distriot
Court in Caso Ho. 110 involving the lands of ox-miosion
San Jooo said, "I do not know of any oultivation of tho
lend of that mission botweon the poriods (1843-1840)
statod,” Ho deolarod that the needs of the pricots
wore wory scantily supplied from the movable proporty



of tho migoionn and from gifts of priwvate individunls.
Deseribing conditions prior to 1843, Forbos furthor
tostificd: "I do know that the agriocultural lands of
that mloosion wore oxtonsively cultiwvated by the Indians
undor tho oherge of their rospective priests prior to
the tranefor of tho missions to the adminiastratora. I
have poon over two hundred plows plowing at one timo in
thoso fiolds subsequent to the timo whon paid mipsion
was placed undoxr tho charge of the administration.

Thore wao poms oultivation carried on by the Indians
undor the first administration, and for somo timo boforo
the rostoration of 4t to the chargoe of the pricsts thoro
wvas no ouiﬁvation and the Indiang disporsed thomselvos
ovor the adjoining renchos to cultiwmte land for thoir
own maintonanes. I lmow that the priest hgd to dopend
on the chaxity of his frionds for his support, owven to
his food."

When the first Amorican settlers arrived, ruin and
doocay had already set in, although the dilapidatad
mission building still served as a sholter for many of
the fmmigrants who orossed tho plain to Celifornia
yoara latox,

™e ruins and the names are still thore. The
beautiful countryside that the padros know and tho
shimmoring bay around which has gromn up o great olvil-
ization are still part of tho socene, but the padres and



the Indians have long sincs venished. Gono too, are the
gallant dons of tho ranchos, Somé of the 0ld Spanish
names - Rancho dol Agua Calients, Rancho Potroro do los
gorritos, Vallojo's Mill and others - otill evoko
momoyics of n romantic past. 7he Higuerras, the Alvieos,
the alwarados, the Pachecos, the Picos, and thoir frionds
are all but forgotten and tho story woe have to tell be-
gins with such Anglo-Saxon names as Beard, and Hormor, ond
Smi th.

The first Amorican to como to the region of Mission
san Jose was Jodedieh S, Smith, who arrived in May, 1827.
The lettor which Smith wrote to Fathor Duren of the
migoion is on example of fine diplomaoy and straightfor-
ward dealing. Smith was captain of a group of trappors
employed by the Rooky Mountain Fur Company, Tho little
band had worked its way acroas the Siorra Novada
Mountaine to tho uppor end of the San Joaquin Valloy,
then prosooded down the walley and camped near jission
San Jose, The presance of such a disreputable looking
company of foroigmners slarmed the padre in chorgo. Ex=-
plonations wore in order ond Smith wrote a lottor ro-
counting how ho had oomo into the country and why he
had not doparted, closing with this modol of good form:
"I am, Roveorend Father, your strange but ronl friond
end Christion brothor, J. S. Smith,”

Wiho could foreseo that only iwenty-two yoars lator
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the last of tho Amorican military govornors, Genoral Riley,
would place anothor Smith in authority as elcalde over that
oamo liission.

7his wmas Jenry Clay Smith who, with olevon othor horso-~
won, arrived at Sutter's Fort on Christaas Day, 1845, Thore
ho yemained in tho cmploy of Captain sSutter until March 1,
1846, but in the fall of that yoar he marched south with
Fromont in tho ranks of the California Batallion, In 1847
aftor his marriage to Mary Harlan he journsyed with hia
bride to the redwoods of Rancho San Antonio whero ho ro-
mainod until tho spring of 1848 whipsawing posts for feno-
ing property in San Franocisco. Thon, when tho nows camo
flying thot old had been discovered at Coloma, Smith left
gsan Antonio for tho diggings but did not stay long in the
Mothor Lode country; in 1849 wo find him conducting a
store at Mission Sun Joso with his brother, Hapoloon
ponaparts Smith.

It should be notod that this account of Smith's
aotivitios prior %o locating at Mission Son Joose does not
agroo with somo of the ourront histories. Banoroft states
that Smith came with tho Hastings perty, end Bowman alloges
that he accompaniod Fromont. Tho details glven sbove are
baced upon an intorviow with Mips Emsma Snith, deughter of
tho pioncor.

There is no quostion about Smith's lator carcor. His
morchandiping oporations at Migsion San Jose were phoe
nomennlly succesaful, All travellers to and from tho



southorn mines had to take tho Migsion Pass xoad and
itiasion San Jowse stood on this highway. From Argonauts
going sast to tho Sierras, Smith recoivod coin for his
waros, and from successful miners going dack to oivil-
ization he collected the "dust" in such quantities
that traditicn says his hoaxrd of gold required & wagon
to transport it.

Szith has beon called the "Father of Alameda County”
sinco 41t wms largely through his offorts that the lLaglie-
lature wns induced to oxeatoe the County early in 1A563.
Horace Carpentier of Oakland worked with him foxr the oo-
fablishmont of tho new County, nlthough the two men
afterwardo beoame opponents on the gquemtion of tho county-
seat. Carpentior naturally wishod to place the county
offices within his sphore of influenco around Qekland,
whilo smith quite as naturelly fought for their location
et Alvarado, tho now tom he was backing near the southorn
end of the County. The wote in tho Logislature wne olose,
but Smith won and the dietinotion of boing the first
eentor of county government went to Alwarado, It woo a
logional victory; VWechington Tbhwnship wms the oldost and
bent dewveloped part of the County at that time. But on
tho othor hand, Alvarado wao hard to rosch, espooielly
in wintor whoen the roads woro pomotimes impessable, and
it wvmo inovitable that the growing metropolitan area nonr
Oukland should eventunlly become the contor of governmoent.



Another early arrival in Vashington Townghip who
sottled at Mission San Jose was Ellas L. Beard. JFrom
all that hns been rocorded about him it appears that
Beard 'was the idoal entreproneur and homo builder,

o came from a rapce of pionocors., His father emigrated
from lMow York to Michigon in 18350 when Elias was fourw
teon years old but the boy did not stay there for long;
the following yoar he was in Poru, Indiena, and in 1856
sottled in Lafayotte, Indiena, vhexre he remainod until
the westward movoment of goldsoceckers began. Arriving
at Misslon 2an Jopo in 1849 Beard wnes soon toking an
active intereat in tho improvoment of poars growing in
thoe misslion orchard ond 1t wne he who introduccd the
Bartlott, Socokel end othexr wvarieties by grafting on the
trees of the old orchard. Many later orchardis of the
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towmship wore supplied from this stoock. [is wife and two

sons, Henry CG. Zllsworth and John L. Board, arrived in
1850 with rose ocuttings and othor plants, and with these

Nrs. Beard began that garden with the oreek rurmming through

it which wus the onvy of so many visitors ond which came
nearer to tropical beoauty than any other placoe in the
County.

In 1859 the California Former commonted na fol=-
lows upon tho fire which dostroyed Beard's rosidonce

at Mioslon San Jome: "Mr, Bonrd, like the groat majority

of our early pionecers, has become inured to the usuanl

revorsen of a Cnlifornies life, and bears his orosa



with the spirit of a martyr, A large cirele of friends
will deeply rogret this misfortune at this time, and the
loss to him and his family of their much loved home, on~
doared to them by many kindly associations, Hundreds of
our oitizens will recall that pleasant and beautiful
spot, truly a mansion of refined hospitality and generous
friendship.”

while carrying on his agricultural sctivities,
Beard aleo engaged in business. He opened a store at
Mission San Jose in 1849 with H. C. Suith, Jeremdah
Fallon, Micheel Murrey, and william Norris as customers
end neighbors.

But the outstanding American pioneer in Washington
Towmship was John M. Horner., Hormer wrote a book,
published by the Hawaiian Casmette in 1808, in which he
gives an autobiographiocal sketoh rich in historiecal
material, In this story, Hommer typifies the many
thousands of immigrants who poured into California
through the passes of the Sierras or through the Golden
Gate. e wos borm on & fam in Monmouth County, Now
Jersoy, on June 15, 1821, and on ooming of age was foro-
od to dbegin shifting for himself with no money and with
a minimum of business experience. "Industry, honesty
and good judgment,” he writes, "were to be my guiding
star for sucoess,”

working through the summer for & farmer at nine



dollars a month and teaching school during the winter,
Horner launched himself on a notable career. In
January, 1846, heo married and the very morning after
the wedding sot out with his bride for New York, there
to embark on the amigrent ship Brooklyn, chartored by
Sam Brannan to transport a colony of Hormons to San
Francisco Bay. 'The 18,000 mile voyage by way of Capeo
Horn, Juan Fornandoz Ialond and the Sandwich Ialands,
consumod about six months, so that Horner is justified
in saying that this was "both in timo and distance a
rather uncormon wedding tour.” The young oouple must
have boen full of courage and fired with detormination
%0 make a homo for themselves in the far-away iiest.
One muat share Hormexr's pride in his wife, to whom ho
paid the following tribute in 1898; "she is yot with
me, hale and hearty, deily suporintending her house-
hold, her flowers, ehrubs and lawmn, and has prowd a
worthy helpmeet for a piocneer; and now, being sur-
rounded by husband, children and grandchildren she
soomp to enjoy life."

Gold, the luxe that brought s host of adventurors
to Colifornia, was not the urge that drove the Horners
to set sall with a company of Mormon pilgrimes across
pix times as many miles of oocan as the Mayflower pil-
grims braced, Whothor or not Sam Brannan had drsams
of an isolntod Mormon oclony on Sen Francisco Bay, it



is certain that the passengers on the Brooklyn were pro-
foundly disappointed whon they saw the U.S. Frigete
Portsmouth lying in the bay, Hornor writos; "War wae
raging in California vhen we arrived there, betwaon
Mexico end the United States. The uppor part of the
territory was eslready in possession of the United States
forges, which we wore ploased to hearx." Somo of the
company volunteered with Fremont and the othors tock
turns standing guard in what 1s now the oity of sSen
Frcnolsco.

fhen the exodtement of wur had paseed, Hornoxr sot
out to find some place wherc an ambitious farmor might
use his brawn and his wite to build & fortune. An
opportuni ty soon offered itself. Dr. John Marsh ownod
undevoloped land on the lower Sen Joaquin River and as
Hornor had brought now farmming tools with him on the
Brooklyn, the dootor offered to give the young man a
share of any orop he would put in for him.and the
bargain wao closed, Vith one spon of oxen at a time
to plow tho land, Hormer and a man named Light worked
hard sowing forty aores of wheat, Rains wore carly
that year and the soil fortile, and en abundant orop
was harvested. But Hornex wnas looking for atill bigger
rooults. In Maxrch 1847, he moved over to Mission San
Jono where ho found land moxe to hip liking and ogain
bogan plowing snd planting wheat, barley, peas, potatoocs
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gnd garden truck., This time, howover, his crop was
destroyed by graschoppers, It must have been dis-
heartening, but later in the same secpon tho indomit-
able young farmer planted more potatoes, only to hawe
them ruined by cattle.

Hoping to roalizo someothing from his work for
Dr. Marsh, Horner called for his share of the grain
vhich had been harvested and stored in a granaery,
but the dootor gravely informed him he had no vhoat
thera. "Your ghaxe,” he said, "wmos destroyed by olk,
untelope and other wild animals; my share alono wus
haxrvosted.”

out of the first year of his farming venture in
galifornin Horner reaped nothing but bitter experience.
Ho supportod himsolf partly on the proceeds of a amll
dairy which he worked on chares and purtly by hiring
out as a laborer. But this haxrdy pionocor was nothing
dounted, In the spring of 1848, determined to make
another farming venture that year he rented a plege
of ground from an Indian end built a small house on
it, and aftorwards wrote of this entarprise as follows:
fThere being no fonces or fence material for miles, I
went to the redwoods twenty=-five miles distant, rox
fonce matorial. I mado e pen to hold animals, fencod
a small gaxden plo® and sowed it with wvarious Idnda of
garden ssed, intonding to trensplant them into the open
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ground latox on. But huzan plong not Loing infrllivlo,
the plants vora noyor trancplonted, for tho rvapon that
gold map diceovored about thio tims eond tha gold fovor,
which broko out with opidoxto violenao, fook noorly oll
tho pooplo (inoluding pureelvos) off to tho minoa,

o d4id not got much gold, but wo got tho oguo vilth-
out nuoh oxortion and &4d cencidorable ghalking, ‘Tho gold
favox having 1aft us ontirely, w roturnod homs in tho
f01) ond in the hoalthy coast olimmte tho aguv coon loft
ug, 0 voxo o happy couple whon we got bnek to tho famm,
although oux gaxrdon wup dontroycd, our hogs had gono wlld,
ouxr housd was only wulls, xoof and outer and innor dooxs
of rough slabdo, hung wlih ranhido hingen, cuxr windowa
word munlin and wo had ground for the floox. But At wao
our mangion, wo onjoyad ond dmprovod it ao timo xolled on.™

7ho bravo young couplo had mado 14tlo progrons in
acoumulating -wvorddly goods during tholx first two yocors
in Onlifornin, - Theix first-born wao now a yoar old;
thoixr oxpoxionco in tho minos had ouxed tham of the gold
fover and thoy wore fully detormined that, ao Hoxnor
himsodl quaintly pats 1t, "if wo ocould not dio wilthout
going to tho ninos to do it, wa would not dlo at all.”

S0 onod moxe Hoxnor turncd his attontion to farnm~
ing, with & fooling that dootiny hnd thrunt that ocou-

pation upon him, Bilttor oxporienco had taught him that
foncoo wro cogantinl and although he had to trawl a



132

weary digtanco to the San Antonio redwoods fox matorials,

he set out on March 10, 1849, with three Indians, four

yoko of oxen, ono wagon cnd the nogessary tools to obtain
foncoe lumber, By dint of hard work he took away onough

wood to fence sixtoen @ores and on theso he plunted potatoes,
onions, turnips, oabbages, watermelons end muglmolons -

the greator part of ths field being given to potatoes.

The oxop grew nicely, but in the fell when 4t waso
maturing and wno tho only green gpot in tho noighborhood,
it bocame forage 0 tempting to the herds of hungry cattle
mndering in the hills that the hastily construoted fence
was wholly insufficient to keep out the marauders. o
proteot his orop Horner ofton had to spend the shole
night in the opon, armed with a shot-gun; and he found
it necossary to keep up this hard sentry duty until
late in the fall if he hoped to save the fruit of his
labor, 7hon tho »ains came howover, and groen food
gprang up aoross tho whole country-side, the cattle no
longor ennoyod him,

In tho fall of 1849 the sale of some watormolons
for two dollars brought Homer his first income in three
yoars of faming. But during Ootobor and Nowvombor gold
huntoxrs bogan to axrrive in hordes, Threatoncd, or al-
ready down with sourvy through lack of fresh vogotables
on the long journoy, they found Horxnor's raw onions and
potatocs sweotor to their palate than the finost fruit,
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gixtoon acres was phenomenal., Two wagons made several
trips to his farm from the mines, two hundred miles away,
for loads of vegotablos at what Hornoxr called "fair
prices,” The oxop brought in about 98;000.. even though
half of the potatoes were ruined through the owarflow of
a small oreck swelled by oarly rains.

Horper was virtually tho only fammer in the arca and
he was not slow to make the most of his monopoly. Alded
by his brother william who joined him carly in 1850, he
tilled five hundred nores of soil that year end let out
a portion of this land to tenants., With herculean labors
they fonced and plowd and powed; their reward 1s best
oxprossod in the words of Hornmer himsolf: rQur orop this
yoar was comparatively large, and the coil being virgin,
the product waa of good quality. lie bou@xt out our two
tenants at harvest time, paying them nearly twenty
thousand dollars omch for their share of the orops they
had raisod, Our gross sales this year approximated
$150,000. Our onions sold for forty dollars por cental,
tomatocs threo hundred dollars por ton, potatoos one
hundrod and fifty dollars per ton, and othor things in
proportion"=-naturet s reward for the paticnce and por-
gistence of & man who refused to be discouraged.

1850 was an important year in the history of
fashington Township, and the toil of tho Hormer brothors
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hod much to do with the course of awvants., To the modern
roader 1t might scem commonplace for a man to beliove in
the agrioultural wealth of the fortile California walleys,
but when Horner pledged his time end enorgiocs the outeome
vas uncertain; he had to build a tradition.

Rumor had spread abroad that Californis was a barren
country whose only resources wore mineral deposits; ocon-
soquently, most of tho emigrants caught in the gold rush
camg with the hope of a quick fortune in the mines and en
carly roturn home. Eastornors ploturcd the desert
character of California so vividly that a company was
formed in How York to run stesmshipe botween sSan Franclsco
and the Sandwich Ielands for the oxpress purpose of supply-
ing Oanl.fornia with vegetables., A certain Captain Browm
was sent out in 1851 to make the yrenm{mry surveys for
lendinge and depots, and on his trips about tho bay
happoned to stop at Horner's farm and saw the orops just
vready for harvesting. Ho also vislted the agriculture
foir held in San Franocisco. The farm end the falr
stopped the whole enterprise. The orop of 1853 glutted
the California market and tho days of big fortunes for
little men in the California wvalleys wore over.

In 1850 Hormer bought land on Alameda Croek and laid
out the tom of Union Oity. His om account says that ho
bought 100 acres, This hardly seoms likely, mince tho
docd desoribing his purchase from Augustin Alviso in-
oludes only a parcel of land about fifty yards wide lying
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along "the river upon which the present embarcadero of
San Joso Mission is situanted.” The length of this strip
of 1and is not atated but 1t 4o hard to imagine that it
was long enough to inolude one hundred acres. The price
paid was $2,000, and the dats of the deod is July 16, 1850.

That Union City was laid out as ecarly as 1850, is
proved by a dooument dated Decomber 10, of that yoar, in
vhioh Horner is given power of attorney to sell lots in
Union City for P, H. Mepsmore, The gamo doocument also
entablishes the fact that the name Union City wms adopted
before Horner purchased the steamor Union -- agsuming of
course, that his momory had not played him faloe.

Speaking of his orops in 1851, Horner says, "This
year ouxr cxops were large and a ready market was found
for nll that we ralsed, though at reduced pricos fronm
formor yeara as othor farmers had got to\ work in different
parts of the Statd.se.......10 bought a stoam boat (The
Union) to ocarry our produce to market. This year our gross
pales approximated two hundred and seventy thousand dollers.
puring the fall of this year, Professor thelton, botanist,
held in San Franoisco the first agrioultural fair ever held
in California, to which I was the largest contributor,"

The stonmboat was not purchased thorefore until some
time during 1851, Howevor, the really important point
in tho matter is the founding of Union City. wWhether or
not Hormexr's Lirst purchass was 100 acres, it 1s certain
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that bofoxe the oclose of 1850 he omed land around tho
old embarcadeoro of Misaion San Jose suffiociont for the
site of a tom, His om account states that he made at
leasct two purchases: The deod of one of theme hnd ale
™oondy boen referred to; the othor is not recoxded in the
archiveos of Alamoda County but is probably to be found
in San Jose. From tho language of Horner's account it
is reasonable to suppose that the year 1861 saw the
founding of Union Oity, the plan of which was mande by
Hornor in 18860,

In an article published in the quarterly of the
¢alifornia Historleal Society, Vol. 1B, 1933, Howman
says that on Decembexr 27, 1850, Honry C. Smith pur-
chasod 405 acros of land from Alvieo and Pachoeco. On
these aoras another town was surveyed and the first
lots wore mold March 18, 1851, Bowmsan 18\ nleo authority
for the stutoment that this towm was at the uppor on-
barcadero just across the boundery line fioum Hornox's
Union City.

Those two towns wore originally founded as shipping
points for produce fxam the rich farms of washington
Towmship. In the beginning warehousos and stoamboat land-
ings wore thoroforo the chiof contors of anctivity; but soon
buainoss housos aluo began to appear. The firat grooory
store in Union City was opened by Capt. Bulmor in a duild-
ing nmade from packing cases - a building with an intorost-
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ussd as a home by Mr. Josoph Ralph; then 1t sorved as

o store and saloan; thon as a gambling houes and & home;
then as a boarding~houss and a men's furaiching store;
end in 1904 1t wao still standing,

In Hew Haven, Henry Smith was not only the first to
open o store, but he also built warchouses and sold
produece. Although his town begen itn careor as New Haven,
after a now survey was madeo in 1852 the place was callad
Alvarado. This has caused a certain confusion owver the
threo ambryonic towms. In the bill oreating Alameda
County 4t wmsp pn‘:vided that Hew Havon should be the county-
gont and Alvarado the seat of justice, The now county
offioinls mot in Smith's store located on block 81 in Hew
Haven, but the minutes of the meoting oxe dated Alvarado,
April 11, 18563, and this scems to indicate that New Haven
had taken the name Alvarado without inoluding the town it-
pelf, leaving that towm nameless. Whorsupon the owner of
Mvarado egold the fifty mores of the town, and by popular
conoent 4ts oite became a part of Union City. Thore were
then two towns inwvolwved in this confusion of names: LHow
Haven, just rochristsned Alvarado, and Union City, which
included what had asctually beon Alvarado. But the line
between the now Alvarado and Union Oity continued to be
thc: sastorn lino of Hommer'p property and both towns
clustered around the upper and lower embarcaderos dating
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b2 called by the same nome; the Santa Olara Registor of
Mpy 20, 1863, speaks of Alvarado as tho new name for
Union CAty.

The operations of Horner, Smith, Beard and othors
wore so sucoossful that newoomru‘bapt pouring into the
new townohip and the fertile plain became the site of a
nunber of towns., These towns lie within a madius of
four or five milag--pAlvarado, Decoto, Niles, Irvingion,
Mission San Jose, VWarm Springs, Hewari, Centorvillo--
and Hornor hnd & part in founding seversl of them, He
gas the first resident et Weshington Cormers (Irvington)
long before 1t had 2 name or even ressmbled a towmn. Then
1%t was Imown as Niggoux Cormers, from the two nogroes who
kopt & saloon at this Jjunction of the roads from Centor-
ville mnG Warm Springs to Mission San Jose,

An interesting reference to Nigger Corners is made
in ths Cnlifornis Farmor of Ootober B, 16860, It cites
fxom the Alameda gazette an item about a thlrty;dx mile
horse race promoted by Higuerra and Salio, (ox according
to other authoritics by Augustin Alviso and Guadalupo
gelays). "The amount bat is $2000 a side.” "The
Spanierds from the vioinity ocrowiod the roadside upon
thoir mules and horseos., Mon, womeén, and children, an
oxoited and noisy throng, chattering snd betting, awaitod
the passing of the herces. iiomen even tore the jewslry
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bogon to rain, but no one thought of turning homsward

ti11 the race had passed. At last the horses came into
vitw, laboring end straining, with the mud flying from
their hoofs. Tho men stationed a%t the roadside to whip
them on, prapared to do their best, while the crowd

wmitod in anxious expostation, An they drow near, Salio'a
horeo wns seen to be badly blown end junt opposite Capt.
Volpey's plooce he foll, a viotim to the Spanish love of
snort."

Slavery was stil) a legel institution when this
famous cmtas‘t waa planned, and the namo Higgor Corners
vas already ourrent. Apparently the slavery question
and racial antagonian were not agitating vwashington Towne
ship duriag the early days of the present towmn of
Irvington,

As tho towm grow it had to got rid of its early
sobriquet. The neme was changed to Washington Corneras,
but vhen this ocowrzred is not clear; it wms still knowmn
oo Niggor Cornors at the close of 18060, By 1862 a
public sohool was opened in a building moved over from
Contorville; the first teacher wams Hervey Creen, en elder
in the Moxmon church, and the first trustees were
¥m. O« Horner, Ge Ms Woltors, and wme. Hopkins., Before
151113 dato howover, a priwate ochool with eight puplle
had been conduoted by M, i, Spencer, These educationnl
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activities alono would indicate thnt tho village doporved
o bettor name than Niggor Cormors, and after considoradle
locel disoussion tho name was changed -~ firat to washing-
ton Cornors (which appears ao late as 1885), ond then to

Irvington, tho railroad designation af'tox 1854,

Progross in tho little community was steady. In
1671 tho people bullt Washington College, ond in July,
1872, tho sohool oponod with Rove ond Mra, 5. Se Hormon
in charge. "Tho colleoge is open to pupils of both sexen,
ond 18 not a morely local institution, os 41t has, likeo
ille Seminary, pupile from oll parts." ‘his school, and
a wookly nowspapod ostadblishod in May, 1875, (praised ns
one of tho bost in tho stats) mado Wachington Coxnors
tho ocentor of cultural deovelopmont in tho tomnship., 7Tho
oollege nlso oided the growth of population in tho
noighborhood by induoing @ number of families to cottlo
near Irvington. Church life, on the othor hand, wo
slow in developing; for many yoars, a small Morwon chapol
vao tho only placo of worship. But commorcial catorprines
and profossions bogon to thrive from thu wvory boginning;
thore wms a grain waxohouse, & grain buyoer®s agonoy, a
hotel, two manufacturing cestablishments, two or throo mor-
chandiso stores, a poat office, an oxpross offioco, an
attornoy's and e physicien's office, a drug store and
stationery stoxe, a butcher shop, a boot and shoomakox’ o
ghop and a saloon or two.
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In tho beginnings of Centorville the Hormers agailn
play s part., In 1850 John M. Horner built a schoolhouso
on tho lot vwhere the Unitod Statos Hotol now stands. In
his own account of this poriod ho says, "Aftor planting
wao over, I sont my brother back to New Jorsoy on businoso
and ho brought out with him my fathor and mother cnd sll
thoir children and childron's childreon, two of my siotors,
and a brothor and oome othor people, some twenty-two coula,"
and in 1862 tho little group formod a nuoleus for
Centorville.

The farming operationa of the Hornors were growing by
leaps and bounds Jbout thio timo. "yo continued our proo-
porous caroox,” writes Hornor, "buying more lands and
faming thom ourselves or letting them out to tenants until
our potato orop reamched the onormous quantity of twenty-two
nillion pounds in 1863, %o aleo had this y;nr fiftoon
hundrod aoros of whoat and barloy, bosides cabbages,
tomatoos and onions in quantition.”

In tho samo year 5, L. Boeard raised a orop of olowen
million pounds of potatocs but could £ind no market for
than, accoxrding to a statoment in the California Formor
{Meb, 11, 1859) which agroos with Hornor's account. In
spite of ouch reverses, howower, woalth continued to in-
oronso, Tho Sen Franoisco Horald for May 20 of that yoar
ran tho following itom: "Tho sSanta Clara Reglator says
the fiolds of whoat and barley in this County look ox-
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coodingly fine., Tho bopt ocultiwvated portion of the atate
and that which denmotes tho highost ond most rofinod egri-
cultural condition of the poople, lies betweaon the Mission
San Jose and Union City, or ns wo should call it (by its
now naome ), Alvarado. K. L. Beard, Esq. has hore a
beautiful residence, grounds, ynrds, orchards, flowors,
and fruits, cultivated with the pureost tonte, and in tho
highost Lindigh,”

In 1854, J. 4. Hornor submittod the following de=-
soription of his farm to the Celifornia Farmor:

mir, Bditor: Permit me to submit for a premium the
Rancho do los Papas. It 4o my homestend estoblishment,
containing one thousand soxes. It i1s fenced on tho out-
side ontire, and has sevoral oross fences, dividing 1t
into 50, 100, 200 acre fiolds. iie have 400 acros of wheat,
100 acros of which hons beon sown this soason - the balance
is voluntoor; 100 aores of wvoluntoer ocats yielding doublo
laot your's orop, on the samo land; 50 acres of barloy;
100 aoros of potatoes; 50 acres of orchard, including
about 4 mores of garden; 2000 fruit trees, eambraocing more
variotics thon I am willing to nome, prineipally apples
and peachons; somé of the lattor will yleld the present
peason nonrly ono bushel of good matured fruit, Tho troos
are tho most thrifty I ovor saw. Thoro is also o nursory
of various kinds end qualitios of fruit, Iy grapevinos,
mmimrins 250, aro very full of fruit this year. There
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. |
i5 1/4 of nn acre of strawborriecs, besides gooseberries,

ourrcnts, and other ahrubs ond flowers inmumerable; 3I00
aorvs of panoture lands in which are pastured from 20 to
80 head of horses, mulos, oxen, cows, etc., nearly all
of choice breod, and about tho samo amount of chickens,

"I built the house on the premises in 1847. The
above namod farm 4s in Alameda County, and took its name
from this faot: In 1848-0 I raiscd more potatoes on it
than were raissd in tho balance of the state, and I pree
sumo 4t has boen tho most effecotual argument used to con-
vinge the people of Californiea ond the world that vegoet-
ables oould be raised mbundantly in this atateo. Decldos
tho above \puru_oular form we have some tan outside farms,
and from theoir thorough oultiwation, thoy would undoubt-
edly como in for thoir share of mexit. wue have 5000
aores cultivated on the latter farms, whioh are all oit-
uated in Alameda County."

It would be Aifficult to draw a clearor pioture of
the early dowvelopment of the County.

Undoxr the aggrosalwe and successful leadership of
John Hommeyr, the Horner family was undeniably a potent
faotor in tho building up of Washington Townehip,. fidth
unupual qualities as on agricultural and business leader,
Hornor combinoed a strong religlious and sociol sanpo,
manifested when ho performed the dutien of pactor for
the loorl Mormon congregantion.
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In the establighmont of Centerville, the Hornora
agein pleyed a leading part, ond yot they woro not the
firet pooplo to sottle thore., That dinmtinotion goos
to on Snglishmon, George A. Lloyd, cnd en Italien,
Francosoo Cataldo Pepo or Frank Popper. Theso men wore
the first to make thoir homes within the prosant con~
finos of Conterville, ocarly in 1860, Mur, Lloyd brought
hio family hore and st up housokeoping in a blue tent
shich, for o time, sorvod not only as a home but also
as o store where the lLloyds sold rofreshmonts to woary
travolers. A story has boon told that he oven built a
fonco aoross the xoed, barring the way in the hope that
myrax"orn thus delayed might partake of his hospitality
- %t a falr price, Later tho blue tent was replacod by
o framo houso, At first Frank Popo was the hirod man
on Lloyd's place but Jator he bought o x:nnoh neayr Jarvis'
Landing down by the bay shoro.

The first public building - perhaps tho first build-
ing of aeny kind to be ervoted nt Contorvilleo - sooms to
have bdbeen the gchoolhouse montioned above. It was bullt
in 1860, apparently by Hormeor, and the first teachor was
Haxrvoy Green, a Mormon elder. Green wms followed by @
cortain ur, Xompstor of whose school we have a quaint
rominisceonce from one of tho oarly settlers: "We, my
sistor, two cousine, and I, - started early in the morn-
ing, and cheerfully walked the thres long miles of lonoly
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rond, with tho tell mustard growing high ebove our honds
on either side, Tho schoolhoust was ¢ suall, plain une
painted building, with homsmade docks and benches for tho
older pupils. Not yot arrived at the dignity of a dosk,

I sat on ono of the benohes ranged around the sides of the
roon end with othors of 1like gizo and agoe dangled my feot
from nine to four o'oclock."”

Early oducation and religion went hond in hand, end
roligious sorvices wore hold rogularly in the Hornor
sochoolhouso, Aftornoon moetings wore lod by Hormer and
on Sunday moinings he genercusly pomittod the lMethodists
and Presbyterions to use tho building alternately. In
1853 ROvV. U, W, Brior had organized the firat Proghytorian
congrogetion in tho County, and on Jamuery 1, 1856, thoir
first building wmes dedicated - a briock structure destroy-
od in the earthquake of 1868. In Almdo and Union City,
on tho other hand, religious developmont was vory slow.
Both Hoxrnoxr and Brior ocoasionally proached thore in the
Brooklyn house (which by way of amusing contrast, sorved
olso as county Jail), but no regulexr roligious servicos
wore organizod until 1860. In that year a Sabbath school
vas bogun by two Zoalous women, Mrn., Charlotte Cormel, a
Progbytorian, and Mras. Julia Thompson, a Methodiot, and
this sohool gave a forward impetus townrdec the orcction
of churchos for both denominntions. 7Thexe followed a
oﬁurch;mm“ contest which was not elways marked by
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foolings o'r perfect charity, but tho cause wns godly
end the two congregations gpared no effort to push
ghoad their building program. Both churches ware fine-
ighed in 1860, but the Methodiste won the contest by e
few monthes lFor a long time after, the two places of
vorghip bore the oxpressiwve namos of Charlotte's Temple
end Julia's Chapel - a public aclmovledgement of the
two ladies so motive in their establishment.

Hot only in »eligion but in education as woll,
gontorville took the lead over slvaxade. It was not un-
til 1853 that a private school was opened at Alverado
with o tuition rate of five dollars per month, For men
and ;unn with come eduoation, private sohools in those
doys wore a rofinod and attractive entorprise, Usually
they antedated the oponing of publio schools in a com=-
munity end this was true in Alvarado, where o Mrs.
warren was the first schoolmistroas.

Induastriel aotivity in Coentorville bogan carly, In
1856, Um. Barry established a toxtile factory to turn out
grain bags foxr the use of farmers and aleo built a store.
The developmants recorded for that yoar alone clearly in-
dicate that Centerville was rapildly growing into a thriv-
ing ocommoroinl town, The year before, Mr. Clemsns had
built a two~gtory frame structure, the ground floor
occupied by hia store (the samo business ptarted by
Coptain Bond in 1852), and the uppor floor furnished as
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a homo. An ixprioot troe, trained like a vine against
tho building, alone gewo some slight distinotion to
thic box~liko smporium so chaxeoteoristic of the archi-
tooture of thoe time, In the same year, 1854, Captain
pond and Captain Valpoy built another store. This
gorved 1ts commerclel purpose for & while, woo then
turnoed into o school and finnlly became & part of the
Spilscopal Rectory.

flarm Springs already had a history bofore tho period
of this narrative opencd, Our intorest in the tomn be-
gins when Clement Columbot purchosed the site from
Higuera in 1850 and esteblished a roport thero. The
galifornis Farmer of July 8, 1889, caxried the following
adwrtiamz{t:

e undersigned, having lonsed for s term of years
the hotol end premisos known es the Warm Springs, oituat-
ed in Alameda County, near the Mission of San Joso, ro-
speotfully informs the public that he has refurniched tho
house throughout, in the best style, and it is now opon
foxr the public.”

"llo paine nox exponso will be. spared to provide
mopt amply for all the wants of the guests of the houso.
The tablo will be abundantly suppliecd with every dellicacy
in ito season - fruits, borxrios, game, etc,, and overy
effort will be made to xender this houso the most ploasant
and a.g'oonblo place of resort in tho State.”
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In 1661 the hotol changod hands again, the following

notice appearing in the Cnlifornia Farmor, February 195,
1861:

"o had occasion to call at this quite noted place
a fow days since and woro much surprised at the now and
valunble improvements made and making. A fine large
house for sleeping apartments has been erected on one
side of the square. Anothor is soon to bo mado ready
on tho opposite side., Thepo with the large hotel are
boing finoly painted and put in the best of ordor, cnd
will offer splendid suites of rooms for families ox
single porsons."”

‘Lator in the year tho propriotor, Lewis Brady, in-
sortod an ad in the Alta California which carried theso
itoms:

"The {ferm Springs areo po widoly and genoxrally
colebratod throughout Cnlifornia, that it is unnecossary
here to recopitulate their various qualities. To in-
volids, they offer the groatont advantages; thelr
modioinal virtuos being unsurpassed owvon by those of the

Rhino so oxtensively patronized from all parts of Europo,

ond Amoxricf..eees

"There are hunting grounds and trout fishing within
a ghort distance of tho Springo.”

Such encomiums indicate that Warm Springs had an
oat:abnnhed roputation vory oarly in the history of tho
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state; 1t wus to northern Californians what Del Monte

is to-doy. Mail~stages stoppod at the hotel twice

daily, and the "tolegraph-wirog” had ono of their officos
there, However, in the great carthquake of 1888, tho
buildings wore damaged bey@ ropair; poatronege wag in-
torrupted, the springs lost thoir popularity, and thoy
have novor regained 4it,

But rosort 1ifo wae not tho only attraction Warm
Springs hed ever offored., Before Americen ways took hold
it was the soens of great rodeos attended with all the
gay color and romence of Sponich flestas., But the scone
changed rapidly whon tho gringo camo and decay began to
eat in, 4nd yet it wane not until 1863 that tho last of
the cattlo were driven away and the Spanich rodeo booame
a thing of the past ot Warm Springs. As late as 1904
there otill remained tho orumbling ruins of the old
adobes whore dons and ladies in the gala attire of
Spanich days once dined and danced and loved.

warm Springs connot be disnissed without some refor-
once to ito cconomic history. Amoerican farming in tho
neighborhood begen with the arrival of Scott, Soribner
and Hethawsy who bought 3000 acres of land from Fulgenoio
Higuera in 1852 for three dollers en acre. A portion
of this trnot was later purchased in 1858 by Abram

Horris, o lawyer who had been living in Newerk, and
the now oettlomont took the namo of Harrisburg.
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Thon tho Southorn Pacific railroad came, the neamo of
the otation was changod to Warm Springs and the latter
designation wus adopted by the post-office and the
towm, -In 1808 M. W. Dizon built a vharf, known as
Dixon's Londing, end thus gave tarm Springs its om
onmbarocadoxro. It was here that a warchouso collapsed
during the earthquake of 1808, causing the losos of
G000 sacke of grain in tho mud of the olough.

Hoar tho mouth of tho canyon out of which Alamoda
Creck flows in a southwosterly dircotion, tho abundance
of wator powr suggested to the ranchoros an oxcollent
gito for a mill, at a spot accossible to all parts of
the rich lowlands of Washington Towmship, Hero, in 1841,
Josus Vallojo bduilt a small adobe flour mill which becamo
a nuclous for the town of Hiles,

In Septembor 1860, Wm, Tyscn end his young wife,
pottled noarby, aftor crossing the plaine by wagon. From
Fallon, an earlier emigrant, purchased 200 eaorcs of lend,
and Mrs, Tycon's brothoer, Peter Morrison, bought a oim-
1lar traot. Two months lator a son, #illiam fHenry Tyson,
was born.

In 1862 thore wore signs that the littlo colony
meo boconing a community; a grand ball was given and
the first wodding was ocolobrated. Ldna Stuart and
Hoy Bt;nnloy woxo marriod by J. M. Horner who sooms
omniprosont in thoso beginnings of the township.



The cnorgy of theso pottlors wns somotimos
notoniching. 7Thoy had ocome to m wildermeoss, but they
had como to mako homop and build their fortune; their
objoctivo wao vory definito and thoir aim very prooiso.
In 1862, tho socond seapon after thedr arrival, Tyson
and Morxrioon introduced tho first rxonpor. Noodlops o
say, £ino oropo of groin mado it impoamtive that mille
ve built to grind flour. Vallojo's mill waa alxondy
oporating, although it could not do thoe ontire work
elono, ond thore waa B2axi's mill at the mission, both
driven by wator powor, Novortholesa, facllitios for
naking flour wore o limitod that Hornor wrote in his
raninisoennun:

"'hexo boing no mill in the State to convort whoat
into flour, wo built ono at Union City with oight run
of dburrn, at & cont of §85,000, ond mmd ours and
othora' grain.” fThis was in 1853 and Horner's flour
won tho promfum at the first fair at shieh Californin
flour wno oxhibited, o meot tho compotition of tho
new stoam-power mill, the Vallejo wntor-power mill wms
robuilt, A good dosoription of Valleojo's old mill is
glven in a lottor quoted in the short biography of tho
Scott family:

"Aoross tho road from us was tho Vellsjo Flour
1ill,, This was houosd in a four-story structure of
wod., On tho wosot end turncd the large wmator shosol,
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about thirty feot in its diamnter, that furnished the
power for the machinery. %Fhe lower portion of this
great rovolving vheol was incased in a structure of Took
and .comont, that caught the water as it poured over the
wheel, and thon conveyed it by an underground flume

that emptied lowexr domn in the Alameda Croek. Around

the old mill wheel was known by the amall boys of that
poriod to bo the best point fox suckor fiching in the
Valleoy."

The mill worked steadily away until Decombor 1884,
wyhen the last run of flour finally passed through it.
Grain fieclde had yiolded place to orchards and the old
miller, williem Gorgoes, broken heartad at the loss of
his job, died by his owmn hand when the hum of the mill
was at last silenced forovers

Up to 1869 the towm growing up around the flour
mills hed been lmown simply as Vallejo's Mills, but
when tho Central Pacific railroad buillt a line
through the walley, this stopping place was designnted
Hiles, in honor of Judge Hilcs, on official of the
company, and tho town readily adoptod the now name.

In addition to the flour mills, other industries ware
loeated at Niiles - o stone quarry and a gravwl pit,
both of vhich furnished construction materiels for im-
po.rtunt buildings in Oakland end San Francisco. The
quarry was opened in 1879 by Farwell and furnished
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stono for tho Unitarian church in Oakland., Hrom the
gravol pit soventy-five carloads of gravol went to
tho building of tho amphithonter on the campus of the
Univorsity of California,

‘the boginning of education in Hiles may bo dated
from 18562 whon Hervey Green taught for a few monthas
in tho Ovoracker adobo - the third time this Hoxrmon
eldor had plonecored in tesching tho children thedr
three R's. During this some year, Mipgs Sarah Scott
also conducted a priwate school for a shoxt tima at
hor fathexr's houss. After those first efforts how-
over, Nileo could not boast a school until Ootober
1875 when tho first public school wao opencd under the
direction of Miss yatking., Then money for a school-
houeo sms raiced by popular subgoription, ond a groat
ball, held in thoe warchouse of the mill, netted §320.
for the building fund. Tho school wap built and aftor
perving its purpose for a time was sold to tho Congro-
gational Sooiety and converted into a church.

Hoar NHiles is n famous landmark built by Don Jose
de Jesus Vallejo in 1836 - the old Adobo, To-~day it
stonda in the grounds of tho California Nursory md io
viglitod by ao many as 5000 guests in a day during tho
bulb ond rope shows held by the nursery. The adobe is
a whitowmohed building with thick wallas and deop~ -
gmbrdsured windows; its floor is of tile and heavy beams



suppoxrt its eloping roof and a wide fireplece 1s built
into one corner. To~day it is usod as a tearcom for
visitors nt the nursery. Irs, May Pimentel of Decoto
was born in the old Adobe in 1862 end lived there until
1886, Hor father, Antonio Joseph Garcla, ramembered
when this bullding was used as a storshoues., It scoms
ooxrtain however, that Don Jose Vallejo never lived in
the adobe; he owmned an eighteen xoom villa at Mission
San Joes, and it 1s unlikely that he should have
brought & large family to such a house as the adobe &t
Hiles, Thore is some evidonce however, that his grand-
son, Enrique Vallejo lived horo.

Howaxk was ono of the later towns; the coming of
the railroad in 1878 gave the impetus towerds its
founding, A round~houpe and the repeir shops of the
rirst roed from Alameda to Los Gatos were located here
and Carter Brothors car shops 2lso gave employment to
a nu;nbor of pooplo, The company built homos for its
employees, and those beginnings of Howark indicated
its future trend; to-day, it 4is an industrial com-
muinity with 2 pubstantial pay rool from the CGraham Manu-
facturing Company, the Leslio 8alt Worke and the Horton
Salt Works.

Salt wna the enrliest product of the locality.
Imgo Long, who came hore from Fhiladelphia in 1852, wes
the first to dewvelop the salt works, He did not make a



success of the business and sold his plant to J. A.
Plumer in 1863, Under now managomont a moxe modern
procoss was introduced and the industry began to
progper.

Portuguese, mostly sailors from the Azores, began
coming to this locality at an early date. They settled
in 1851 or 1852, cent for thoir familios and through
tholir thrift and cnexgy becane docided assets to the
growing communi ty.

In early days, & British ship, loaded with the kind
of fenocing used to enclose English parks, arrived in
San Francisco lesking badly, and her master had to sell
his cargo at muotion, Thers was no posaible demand for
park foncing in rural Alemeda County, but J. M. Hormer,
thet man "of many dovices," saw in this Znglish ship the
anewer to his troublasome fenecing probleoms, He bought
the whole oargo for a song. During the Civil War iron
was so scarce that most of this valuable metal went to
the foundrioes and was tumed into muniticns. But oo
late as 1904 odds end onds of the fonce might be soen
here and there about the township, csuming much specu-
Intion nbout whore it could have come from.

Another town that owed its origin and growth to the
railroad wns Decoto.

The eaxlier history of this ssotion is not without
'1n.toreat. One Jaros Hawley received a land grant from
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foroed. Ookland was the market for the full output of
tho dairy,

Another important product of the Decoto district
was moulders' sand, many carloads being shippod annually
to the Union Iron Works of San Francinco.

Near Decoto is the Masonic Home. The cornoratone
was laid on Octohor 14, 1896, ond on March 1, 1899 the
imposing buildings ond oxtensive grounds woere thrown
open for the charitable service they hawe sorved ever
sinoo.

This, in briof, ic the story of tho growth of urban
ocomsunities in Eauhing_ton fowmsahip. Tholy dovolopmand
marked an over-inereasing prosperity. Eoonomic well-
boing fostored soclianl happiness end contentmont, but the
yoar 1853 ushored in a dark period of stross and misory.
e penic shich in that yonr began a tronsition from sune
ghine to shadow, can be understood best from the ox-
porl.onc'o of John M. Hornor:

"mhe position that I held in the community at this
time made me much sought aftor as an endorsor of notes,
o signor of bonds and a loanor of money to the impe=-
ounious. ...s+-2 loaned and ondorsed froely, hoping %o do
good thoreby. I have no recollection of rofusing enyone
who asked for an accommodation or requosted to have their
note ondorsed up to and including 1863,

" wQur prospects at this time were bright end our



proparty ample to gratify every wich, and yearly ine
oreasing, and as neither I nor my brother ever drank,
smoked, gambled or dissipated in any way, no cloud of
doubt ever orossed our montal visions that our prop-
oxrty should not always continue to inereaso, as wo
attonded strictly to business, Our orops wora largo
this year, we viewed than ample to pay every endoroo=
mont ond every obligation we had out, as woll as to
pay the oxpense of harvesting and marketing them, Our
property was unincumbered, our business lerge end in
full operation.

"Suoh were our possessions, prospocts and position
when the firat wave of monoy panic struck Coliforaia
and swopt over Amorica with such disastrous resulis
from 1853 to 1859,"

In thoss words Horner mercly expressos the feslinge
of many during those trying years. His furthor dosoript-
ion is too graphic to bo omitted:

"Upon the first eppeerance of the panic on the
Paoific Coast, business began to shrink, proporty do-
creased Yapidly in wmlue, money gradually withdrew from
oirculation, business failures were frequent, larger
interest wus exaoted for tho use of money, more property
wvas demanded as seourity for & given sum, laborexrs wore
turned adrift by thousends (oonme becoming txemps),
familics of tho less fortunate doubled up, that is, two



or more wore compellsd to oocupy one house in tho towms,
whiich befors was hardly thought waple for one, and
squsexzed nlong with scant olothing and still scantiox
food. At tho pame timo thousands of tons of farm
produots woxe never ssnt to market - no snle; good
potatoos ten conts pexr busheol, but thoxe was no ten
eentn, end all this happenod in the Golden State whexo
millions of gold end silver wara dug from tho minos
evory month, and tons of it wore hoarded in banks and
treacury vaulto., A man with o fow hundred dollars in
gold coin wag independont, while the owner of property
that cost thousands of gold dollars, was hard up and in
many cagen sold it for taxos and nover redoomed it.....
I am writing from momory but thoso things are indelibly
engraved upon my mind. I was an aotive participant - I
may say en acute sufforer in thoss soenes,®

Hornexr'p numorous endorsements of nogotiable paper
spolled ruin. His own words best losoribo what happen-
od:

nThus siipped from us $260,000. oOur 918;000 stoamor
went for §$7,000 to pay an endorsement oreditor., In part-
ing with our $85,000. flouring mill we did a little bottor
but the paniec continued so long and was 80 heavy upon
proporty that the purchaser sold it for $5,000; this
px‘:oporty had been depreciated §80,000. by the panic. The
Son Jose Mission lends that hed cost us $70,000., includ=-
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ing improvoments, wont from us for an cadorsoment dobt
of 910,000, Howovor, the squattors had dono as much
to rondor this proporty of 1ittle valuo am the panio.
our homo farm of 1000 acros, which wo had purchasod
four times, went off for an endorsomant of §7,000,
mAlthough my ondorseomonts did not oxcoed $40,000.
the high »ato of intercot, compounded monthly, and othor
exponses forcod from ue ovor §70,000. before Xthoy woro
fully satisfied, and that was paid by the suorifice of
proporty wmld at one-gixth of what it had beon worth tho
provious four yoarss Proporty costing us §280,000. in
gold coin wae owopt awey to pay & forty thousand dollax
endorsomont. . . . « Our comparctively largo proporty
wvaeo gwept from uas 20 quickly as to be bewildering."”

Bosidos these tremondous losses other afflictions
bogan to pross hoavily upon tho onoe pms;omnn and
happy HoxneT. His only daughtar sickened and died, He
himsolf was affiioted with totanus; foxr o timo hias lifo
weo dogpaired of, and recovery was slow and painful,
But ho writos:

“I finally regained my strength after months of
mantal and physicsl suffering and with it came slowly
back my ambition. « « «

"Tho loss of my property pleced me financially
wvhers X had commonced sevan yeors pefoxre, as nothing of
ouoh value was saved from the wreck, except my ox-
perionce. My prospeots oven wore dark, oloudy ond 4is-
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couraging., I gave up my carriage team nnd my watch
from my pooket, and commenced physical labor again

to support my family. I did the boat I could, the
pandie ceasaed, and ite ovil effasta wore gradually
nway from the country. I rentod my old homastond

and after a time bought 1t again, this malking the
fifth time I haed purchansed 1¢; paying for i¢ wvas nlow
worlk, "

Thie moving story of the Hornor family undex the
leadership of John M, Horner, deserves to be remembeor-
od, It i5 a dramatic and noble oxample of the
obstnolen oveorcome and the anguish bravely endurcd by
anigrants toiling to ostablish homas on a sound econcmie
basis., In the epic narrative of those days we meet hard
ond- unasrupulous men, but Horner stands out in bold ro-
Jief as the exemplar of the ploneer ideal. 4nd his
career throws no little glory on the hiatory of Washing-
ton"lbmnh:lp.






Murray and Pleasanton Townships



MURRAY AND PLEASANTON TOWRSEIPS

Botween two chaoins of mountains some twelve
milos apart, lies a sunny, fortile valley stretching
from tho foothills, & few miles south of what is now
Livormore, toward Carquinez Straits in the north,
with tribdutary velleys on oither side formed by spurs
of the mountain chaine, This is the great Livermors
Yalley and togother with lesser valleys, the Amador,
Sunol, Alamo, Tassajara and Valleoitos, it forms the
heart of lMurray end Pleasanton Townships,

For twenty milos, north, south, esst and wost,
tho township extonds across & great variety of fer-
rain - rugged mounteins in the southwes$, hills, cane
yons, woods and streams everywhere in an endless
variation of soene, from rugged grondeur in the moune
tains to rural peace and quiet in the valleys. Thexe
is no forest to tempt the lumberman, but it is a coune
try abundantly wooded with white and live oaks, syda-
mores, laurels and othor spedies indigenmous to the
rogion, Muoh of the soenery is exquisite, Natural
spots often have the eppsarance of oultivated parks and
groves, and the long slopes of the westorn range wear
an embroidery of evergreens vory boautiful in tho soft



morning and ovening light of the mountains - & vivid
oontrast to tho castern chain through whioh Livormoro
Pass winds, with mountains rising in groat bald domos,
arid even in ocarly summor, but with s wind-swopt
baauty of thoir own,

Tho wator-gourses of Murray and Pleasanton Town-
ships are numorous; among thom are tho Arroyo Vallo,
Arroyo Moocho, Laguna, Las Popitas, Calaveras Creok,
Tassa jora Crook and Corral Hollow Creek, Excopting
the last two, all aro tributary to Alameda Creck
which flows into tho Bay of San Francisco, The
lergost of the atreams aro the Arroyo Valle and
Arroyo Mogho whioch, from their source in the mountains
of Santa Clara County, flow in a northwosterly course
through the two townships. Aftor flowing & distance
of about thirty mileos tho Arroyo Valle ;mpuea into
the Laguna noar Ploasanton, while the Arroyo Mocho,
having pursued a course of come fifty miles, mostly
through deop ravinos buttrossed by overhanging orags,
disappears into tho oorth o fow miles northoast of the
samo town, Tho Positas Crook takes a westorly courso,
drains tho eastorn ond of Livermore Velloy, and f{lowse
into tho Tassajara botwoon tho towms of Livermore and
Dublin, Tho Tassajara itsolf, after wntering the val-
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loy from whioh it takes its nomo, empties into the
Lagunn near Pleasanton., Colavoras Oreek has its
gourco in Santa Clara County and finds ite way
through deep canyeno into Alameda County. The chief
watorcourseos are fod prinoipally dy innumersble moull=
tain streams - swirling, angry, trescherous torrento
in the winter timo, but in summer nothing but dry
ruggad gullies.

The geologioal foundation of the township is
largely of sedimontary end motamorphic rocks The hills
eroded by Corral Hollow Creek nre motamorphio, ribbed
with quartz and veined with twisted and vari-colored
jasper baonds, of red, rose, groon, gray end white,
Sorpentine commonly occours in tho region, and near the
Livormore Pass soft sandstone is found in large quane
titiea, The occal vein which runs through the Mount
Dieblo group orops out in several plaeges in the towne
ghip and north of theo abandonsd ccal mines in Corral
Hollow are n few fossilized improssions of leaves,
oyator boeds and potrified wood.

Murray and Pleasanton Townshipa, although come
puratively close to the ocean, have & climate peculier
rathor to mountainous regions than to the coast - large-
1y becouse the mountaine which vary its terrain form
e barrior to tho coastal fogs, The olear, dry air is
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especially benoficial in the treatment of pulmonary
complaints and both the county and the federal gov-
arnments have established senitariums here., In the
summsr seeson the deys are often hot, but nights are
invariably cool and rofreshing. The dry season leuats
from Juno to Decembexr although a moderately rainy per-
iod often begins in October, and while snow rarely
falls in the welleys, it sometimes beautifies the moun-
tain tops for & short period during the winter saason.

A country so attractive was bound to invite set-
tlers, and it was over a hundred years ago thet the
first white man oame to this region, In 1826 Don Jose
Maria Amador, Tormer sergeant at the presidio of San
Franoisoo, was granted a rancho of four squere leagues
and aighteen hundred varas, and after a few short years
had passed thousands of his horses aond cattle ware
roaming over the surrounding hills,

Amador might almost be called the father of manu-
faocturing in Alameda County. Far removad from the
coastal settlements, he had to find means of making in
his own adobe workshops everything needed on the wide
rancho, Visitors at the Amador hacienda were welcomad
with true Spanish hospitality, and sometimss they were
celebritieas, Lieutenant John C, Fremont was graciously



1ce

regoived thore end a story is told, how he repaid the
courtesy of his host by making off with Don Jose's
saddle horses; an not (expedient though it might have
beon to the soldier of fortune) that rankled in Don
Jose's hoart until the day of his death,

When the gold rush came, Amador was daught by the
prevailing fever of exoitement and wont off to the mines,
takinz with him a foroe rooruited among the Indian labe
orors on hiao rancho, He mined for a time botween the
Cosumnes and Mokelumme Rivers within the confines of
the county that now bears his name, but it io not re-
corded that hic venturs was orowned with suscess, The
extont and the fate of Amador's fortune are typiocal of
most of hisc race in California, The mastor of four
square leagueps and one time Administrator of lMission
San Jose, ho once omnod 400 horses, 14,000 head of cat-
tlo and 4,000 hoad of sheep, But reverses come and in
1652 ho waos foroed to sell his vast estate to J. Ve
Dougherty for $22,000,00. Don Jose died at the age of
ono hundred oix, ons of Oalifornia’s firat-born sons and
a broken survivor of the preceding century,

Amadox's first neighbor, Antonio Maria Sunol, was
a man of adventure, Born in Barcelona, Spain, in 1797,
Sunol enlisted in the Frenoh nsvy at an early oge and
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in the year 1818, his vessol touchod at Honteroy.
Allured by the easy Lifeo of tho Californians, Antonio
proaptly deserted., Ho establishod himself in San Jaso
in 1823, in a shop with overy earmark of the cantina
or saloon, and the ontorpriso must have prospered boe
ocnuso shortly artor‘ opening tho business Sunol marriod
Senora Dolores Bernmal,

From 16826 to 1829 Sunol sorved as Moxicen poste
magtor; but between 1828 ond 1820 he was undor suspioion
and invostigation by the Moxionn government on eooount
of his Spenish birth, Moxicon authorities had issued
a serios of long, involved rulings providing for the
rostriotion of Spaniards in Californic or even for
thoir oxpuleion from the torritory. Undor these laws
pumarous classes wore exempt from oviotion, including
the physicslly disabled, those over sixty yoars of age,
those having non-Spanish ohildren, professors of usoe-
ful arts and eciences as woll as thoso who had rondored
spooinl sorvige to tho causo of Moxican indopondonoe
or vho had manifestod fervid dovotion to the cause,
Sunol was oxemps on soveral acores, boing married to a
Californian lady and being the fathor of five childron
bora hexe,.

Like Amador, Sunol went to tho mines in 1848, in
a "moloo of horns and hoofs and heads". Tho broad rood
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botween Sunol Valloy end theo Mothor Lode country was
well trampled by the vast hords of gattle which Sunol
drove to Captein Suttor at Now Holvetia.

After his death at San Jose in 1865, Don Antonio
vas remenmbered as an eminontly rospooted oitizen and
a worthy public sorvant - o man ingapable of basences.
His only strong box was a lerge rodwood onse in which
ho somatimos kept thousands of dollars in gold dust
ond coinj and he wap nover robbod,

In 1834 thoso pioncers of Spanish blood wore
joined by a British subjoot, a man destined to give his
namo to tho great valley of Murray Township end to a
thriving town in tho center of 1t,

Robort Livermore was thirtye-five yoars old whon
his world-wnndering onded and he ocame to live in the
Contra Costa hills, From his birthplage, London, ho
had seiled os a British man-o'~war's man aoross tho
Sovon Secsj in South Amerios ho had enlisted in tho
Unitod Statos navy and wono stationed with the Sloope
of«liar Cayonne on the Poruvien cooast; and vhen his torm
of sorvice oxpired at MHontoroy in 1822, ho deoided %o
romain in the west boosuse he rogarded California as a
land of promige., After a brief vieit at San Jusn Bau=
tiota, ho went to Gilroy end from thore to San Jose
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vhore ho bocame tho intimate friond of Don Joso Noriegaj
thore ho studied Spanigh and eostadliched those cantacta
whioch wore to prove so valuable in the future, Neone
while Livermore married the daughtor of Don Francisco
Higuora and ocame with his wife to the Sunol Velley,
thero to ootablish & permanont home, In this boauti-
ful rogion Livermore and Horioge had obtained title to
a grant of 435,000 aores culled tho Rancho Las Positas,
Livormoro afterwaords bought the interest of his partner
and hore heo dwelt and prosporod until 1858, the year of
his death,

On the banks of Las Ponitas Crook, Jjust west of
the prosont Masonio Cematory, Livormore had built his
homo - tho boginning of the famous Hooienda Livermore.
It was & two-story adobe building sixty feot long by
thirty feot wide, with a patio on the south side ox-
tonding the longth of tho building, Tho houge had two
orohod ontronces from the patio and one of these archoes
led into o living room and banquot hall which was used
for danoing whon tho wants of the innor man hed been
sctisficd and the tables wore romoved. It was no une
usual thing for ifty or a hundred guosts to be seated
in the dining room and on many occasions Livermoro ime
ported an orchostra or o brass dband from San Franociaoo



to furniesh musio for hies flostas,

At the westorn end of the building was located an

apoembly room, and in this room, in the doys of the
Qalifornie gold rush, many a group of minors on their
voy to or. from the gold-Iiclds wore entertained by_tha
genorous host of the Hacienda de Livermore,

Six of the eight children of Livermore were born
in this adobe mension and two wore married bencath ita
roof, A desoription of ono of the weddings makes &
rather vivid pioture of sociel life before tho gold
rushi ‘

"The parlor was decorated with wild flowers and

ropes; an altar was orected mnd covered with

flowers and precious lacej the band played in
the patio, and the pedre Irom Mimaion San Jose

had errived, There was on erch with colored cove

erlets, silk hangings and branches of flowers,
under which the bridal party morched, end when
the wedding was over the men carried the bride-
groom asnd the ladies oarried the bride into the
dining room where the wedding feast was all proe

pered, ond denoing continued far into the night.”

An embryonic community began to take form in the
valloy oo soon as Antonio Maria Pico, Antonio Sunol,
Augustine Bernal and Jusn Pablo Bermal took up a grant
of 48,435 cores of land in the towmohip, Juan Pablo
Bornal bought Pico's fourth and thus began a series of
pubedivisions of the property. This princely domain
oxtended from Sunol to the Livermore Valley, nine ond
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a helf miles east and west, and i;uel.ve and a holf
miles north and south, with the heart of the grant
Just eighteon milos south of tho centor of Hount
Diablo, |

The Bernols were entitled to a grant on acocount
of their long and oreditable sorvice as aoidiera at
tho presidio in San Francisco. Application had been
submittod in 1832, but the grant was not made until
16830, and 1t was April, 1850 before Augustine Bernal
brought his family up from San Josc and settled in the
neighborhood of Pleasanton,

About the year 1845 or 1846 the Fellon family and
Michsel Murray crossed the plains from St, Joseph, lise
souri, and locutcd at Miosion San Jose, where thoy
lived for a timo in the mission buildings, - Katherine
Hurray wag born there on May 17, 1847. Two years later
Murray and Jeremieh Fallon purchassd a pargel of Mr'-
rangho and by 16851 had completed tho conatruction of a
house and the planting of an orchnrd.. Leo KNorris and
Jool Harlan are also mentioned among the pionsers of
1846 who came to the township about this time, John
W. Kottinger, an Austrion, emigrated to California in
September, 1849, married one c;r Augustin Bernal's
niecces the following year, und oame from Santa Clara
to the Alisal rogion with the intention of reising cate
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tle. In 1855 ho moved from his ranch to the village
of Alisal ond opened a store - evidonce that the oo
mmity wan growings It was he moreover; who built the
firet house in Alisal., But in 1867 Kottinger rented
his houst end sold his goods to two partnors named
puorr and Nussbaumex ond they oponed Alisal's first
publio house in conjunction with the store. This was
not theo £irst inn to appecr in Murray Townahip, however.
fhere Mountain House now ptands on the highwey to Stocke
ton, some milos boyond Altamont, ono Thomas Goodall or
Goodale, in 1849 raisod a oanvas pavilion which for
yoors was lmown es the Blue Tent, and until the late
50's ranghers, cattloemen, immigrants end travellors
foregathored theore., It was & worthwhile spectacle
when one of Moleod's stages oame dashing up and changed
borses at the Blue Tent before thundering away aorogs
the San Joeaguin Valley flats toward Stooktom., Tho site
must have been a good ono for business beocuse goodsle
laotor built an adobe on the spot and a character fame
ous in the region onco lived there for over a quarter
of o century.

In March, 1850, Hathaniel Green Patterson who
hailed from Tennessee, rented Livormore's original
adobe and opened a tavern on the route from the mission
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to Stockton. Priges at theso oarly hostoelrios were

on & scale not atrikingly different from prices
oharged in our own day. Lodging sccamodations, vhee
ther bed or board, cost & dollar a night; moals wore

g dollar' each and drinks twenty-five cents - very ret=-
sonable prices for gold-rush days.

Alphonso Ladd end his wife came to Califormia in
1850 from FHew Orleans and settled in Suncl, From San
Francisco the Ladds sailed to tho opposite side of the
bay snd traveled by ox team through a sparsely settled
countryside, first to the misscion and then across tho
mountains to Sunol, The only porson they mot en route
was Timothy Rix who lived between Centervillo and
fieshington Corners and raised great flocks of chickens
ond pigeons, Ladd bullt e sixeroom frame house on the
property of Augustin Bernal, resided thore for alx
years and then sold out to Jose Higuora,

In Juns, 1864 Ladd took up 160 sores of governe
mont land east of Livermore's rancho, built a hotel on
the property the following yoar and in that samo year
suffered a severo loss through the death of 1500 of
his shesp during o drought, Other homes scokera took
up locations near Ledd in quick succession: Adam Fath,
Alexandro Mesa, Oliveria Higuera and several othors
established residecnces noa.r the hotel; & man from Hoy-
ward opened & bluoksmith shop end one Goetjon built a



pmall house which wos later moved down the hill and
used oo & store for o few years until fire destroyed
it.

Settlors continued to arrive. Their names make
a catalogue of early famjilies in the township and 1%
is reogrottable that space permits hardly more than a
more mention of soma very intercating charactors. A
man nemed Bertrand ercoted a house in Sunol Valley in
18523 Goorge Bidnor took up his abode nearby and Same-
usl Mossman cams hers to live at about the some time,.
In 1852, Juan Barnel also become a rasident of the
distriet, bringing with him an extensive fomily, and
Prank Hearne dbuilt the Zinc House near Midway about
1855,

In 1854 Samuol ond J, Yest Martin bought the
Alviso or Senta Hita Rencho eunst of and adjacent to
the San Jose Rancho. Out of a total offering of 8,808
aores they purchased 5,000 sores at an administrator's
stle at the bargain price of $10,000,00 - two dollars
an acrel And it wns said that the purchase prico of
the estate could have been paid from a sole of the
cattle on 1t., The numerous oropo grown on this land
nevor seomod to docorease its pMuotiv&W; the owners

et one time horvested as many os seventy or eighty
bushols of wheat to an aore,
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It wes alco in 1854 that Tom Hart bought a hotel
vhieh R, W, Defroos had built tho year before. For
oight years, before ho finally made his homo in Livore
more, Hart conducted this roadside inn under tho des-
oriptive titlo The Helf-Way Houso, so0 called booause
it was thought to be equidistant from Oakland, San Joaze,
and Stoockton,

Hert, if oarly acocounts of him may be orodited,
vas at first contoot cnything but the ideal host,

st Tonsregiatsy berer

cusgsr Lo e e o
Gruff, blunt end laconic, ho might have driven custome
ors awey from his inn, oxcopt that he was fundomentally
kind-hearted and hospitablo and most of his patrons
know it, Fortunately Hort was blessed with a holpmate
vhose choerfulness tended somevhat to soften hic rude-
noss,.

The population of the township inoreased slowly
but stondily., In 1855 Hiram Bailey settleod below tho
Hart resort and went into farming; in 1858, over on the
castorn side of the township neoor Midway, Robert Graham
oponed the first gonoral otore in the valley and an~
other store was conduocted foxr four yoars by Churles

Gorthuait opposito Augustin Bornal's place noar the

oomw road,
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Pleaganton wes in the first stages of its growth
during the following decade; J. A. Heal sottled near
the prosent town in 1861 end is remembered as ono of
its founders. After his arrival from the Hast, Neal
had worked his own ranch, but later abandoned farming
to aot as overseer on Robort Livermore's ecstates. In
this capacity he aocquired a knowledge of Spanish, and
better still, marricd a daughter of Augustin Bormal,
the young lady bringing him dower of 530 aores of land
near what is now the town of Pleasanton.

In the fall of 1862 a prominont pionser, Charloes
Hadosell, bogan to acquire the Sunol estate, renting
1500 aores as a begimning, The following yoar Hadgell
want to Washoe, Hovade, in tho hopo of making a forfune
at mining, but only to lose $10,000,00 1n an adventure
whioh notted him nothing but bitter oxpoﬂenoe. There=
upon he resumsd hic land-buying program until, in 1874,
he hold title to 4500 sores of tho original Sunocl grant.
During the yeer 1873 heo formsd a wator company which
wop later absorbed by the Spring Velley Water Co. Chas,
gGarthwait looated in this vioinity in 1859, conducting
a genoral-merchandise storo on the ocounty road opposite
the Bornal home, ond one of the loading farmers of the
township, Joseph Hluok, settled near Pleasanton on
land ronted from Augustin Bermal,



Remaining pionsors of this region who contributed
to the development of the community are mantioned
briefly. Mrs. Semucl Srown taught school in Sunol in
1865, J. A, Bilm, born in Baden, Germany, in 1837,
emigrated to Pleasanton in 1865 and is romsmbered as
the builder of the first wagon in the district, FVhon
he arrived thore were only five houses in the place,
Dr. I, H, Mark errived in Californis in 1861, camo fto
Pleaganton in 1865 and established modioal praotico
thore. The Doctor took sufficiont time from hisc pro-
fessional dutiecs to sorve as Justice of the Peaco for
thirteen yeara,

It should also be remarked that Dr, Mork had
sorved ns Mothodist preacher at Camp Soco, Columbin
and Centorville bofore coming to Pleasanton, but after
pottling thera he took up the practice of iwdiqina onoo
more and bocame notable for hism chority and admirable
civio spirit,

Murray Township, as it wao originally crecated,
inoluded all the territory now known as Fleasanton
Township, and the reader must bear in mind that 1t was
only in 1902 that Plonsanton Townahip come into being.
Tho area of the originanl, undivided Murray Township
wog 587.4 squore milos or 247,036 aores, After the
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division, Murray Townahip had an arsa of 261.8 aguare
milos or 167,552 sores, and Pleasanton Tounship ome
braced 125,6 square miles or 80,584 acres. (County
Engineer, 1934)

The first arrivals in whet is now Murray Township
found a highly diversified terrain, on which might be
grown almost eny type of crop. The southwostorn sel-
tion, adjacent to Santa Olara Valloy, is & mass of
mountain ridges, hardly £it for cultivation but ex-
¢ellent no sheop rangos,

The richest lond lies between whnt are now Pleasan-
ton and Cublin, where in tho carliest Spanish days the
migsion fathors pastured thoir herds end whore the Hale
chos San Joso and Santa Hita were later situated. Very
large orops are produced in this sootion, 65 many as
sovanty-five bushels of grain having bosn reapad from
& single acre, Almost any form of plant 1life will
thrive in this area, which includea the only naturally
vatered lond in the Township., Almonds, apricots, olives,
peaches, plums, whoat, barley, oats, hay, and vegetebles
are grown in large quantitios, and the vineysxds in the
locality are extensive,

The soil in caoch of the two main valleys io entire-
ly difforont. The Livormore soil 1s adobe and gravelj
that of tho Amndor Valleys io & moist, sondy loam,
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Marino fossils and tho remains of glant mammals found
in the Livermore area, togother with the charncter of
tho Livermore soil, indicate a comparatively roccant
inundation of the walley, In addition to gravel, adobe,
and loam, ¢ black mould must also be inoluded among the
types of soils found in different parts of the townahip.

There wore white and elso live oanks, sycamores,
laurels, willows and other native trees in the tome
ship in early dvys, but thore was nowhere a stend of
timbor suitable for exploitation.

In Murray and Pieuanton Township the transfor of
land from Spanish to Amorican ownership genorally tock
plage through peaceful and orderly legal process. In
contrsst with squatteriem in Brooklyn Township, for
oxample, it is notable that pionsers in Murray and
Pleasanton Tovmship bousht or rented their acros from
the California land holders alroady in possession,

Hore there was little of the violence and injustice
which disfigure tho history of the American occoupation
in other parts of tho state,

Mexiecn grants, wholly or partly lying in the two
tomnships, are worthy of notice, They were: The Ran-
cho San Ramon - four square leaguos ond 1800 varas, or
16,616,996 aores, granted to J., M, Amador in 1835, oone
firmed by the Land Comnission on August 1, 1854, and by



tho District Court on January 14, 18073 the Rancho Sane
Ta Rita = 8,885,87 acres, granted April 10, 1839 to
J. D. Pachooo, rojooted by tho Comaisoion, confirmoed
by the District Court August 13, 18506, dooree offirmed
by the United States Suprome Courtj El Volle de San
Joso « 851,572,868 acreos, granted to Antonio Maria Pico
on April 10, 1839, confirmed to Antonio Sunol of al,
'by the Commiopion on Januayry 31, 1854, and by the Digse
triot Court on Junuary 14, 1806; Las Fositas - two
gsquare leaguos, granted on April 10, 1839 to Salvio
Paochooo, confirmed by the Commission to Joso Horloga
and Robert Livermore on Fobruavy 14, 1854, and by the
Dintriot Court on February 18, 1880; the Canada do loo
Vequoros (mostly in Contra Coasta County) - grented on
Februnry 20, 1842 to Franoisoo Alviso ot al., confirmed
to Hobor$ Livermore by tho Commission on September 4,
18656, end by tho District Court on Dogember 28, 1857,
In spite of the approval by Amoricsn tribunals of
these grents, many titles remsined oloudoed until 1871.
The comploxity of tho legal ontangloments in which the
ronohos booams involved may bo judged from one of tho
simpler cases, tho Livermore ostato. VWhen the heirs
bogan to puch their olaim, it wos found that the orige
inal grant allowed only two square leaguos, whilo
the speoifiod bounderios included eleven., In 1871



the Dyer Survey adjudicated the mattor and dooided
that the intention of those making tho grant had been
to allow two leaguos. The effect on tho township was
{mmediato, The deocioion opened 243 square miles for
precmption and sottloment and a vast influx of immi-
grants and an nooeleorated devolopment of the towmnship
bogan at onco.

But bofore this deoision of 1871, the squatter
problem while not acute, had given rise to some trouble
on the Bornal and Alviso ranches in 1859, Mony of the
squattors sottling on the property in the singere be=-
lief that it was open to presmption, quietly moved
away or bought farms when they were convinoced of thoir
orror.

Lator disturbances over lond took pl.apo in 1895
end 1889, On July 26, 1875, the Ockland News quoted
the Livermore Independent in the following vein:

"The Independent says: *‘Tho land titles about

Livermore are unsottled and the people are trying

to avoid doing eaten up by the Central Pacific

Roilroad Company.' As it 1o they can't bo sure

of even a burisl plage of their own,”

Spanish and Mexican agrioultural mothods must
have appeared excecodingly primitive to incoming Amer-
foen farmors. OGrain was threshed under the feet of

horges; plows were mado of orotoched logs, and the



vheolo of carts were seotions of trecs, Tho major proe
duots of tho ranchos were hides and tallow, which woxe
havled to Alvizo for barter with Yankoo skippers,

¥iko wap an important product howover, the beet
varietics boing manufactured at the migsion, Amador,
while majore-domo at Misaion Son Joge, had fifty barrels
of wino made overy yeer us it wes an essential on
Spunish tablos elong with cheocse, pinole and wild honoy.
Potatoes were ot that time unknown,

Lend in the township was worth $2,50 an acre in
1860, #hile it might be interesting to spooculate om
the cost in 1853 when tho County was formed, it is safe
to say that the price was extromely low in comporison
with later figures, Land in tho Livermore Valley wan
ot rfirst considered worthlsss! An early resident once
solemnly asseorted that he "had seen squirrels gitting
up in their holes in tho Livermore Valley with tesors
in their oyes, longing for somathing to eat”,

In the Alisal rogion in 1864, land sold at four
dollers an aorej but when poople later ocms to realise
1% true valus, tho prico rosc to ssven and olight dol-
lers and later to ono hundred dollars an aore.

Another Aifficulty with whioch gettlers had to con-
tend was wild mustard. In letor times as orops oxtonded,



tho growth of thin pest woa limited, but in oarly doys
i1t would turn almost an entire valloy into an undulating
goa of gorgeous yollow blossoms, Some of thin mustard
was harvested for market and some was out for table use
in early springtime, But it was an unmitignted nuisance
to.farmersj to proteot growing orops they had to go over
gntire rields and pull out mustard stalks by hand, Thise
was an important faotor in the cost of farm produotion.
From 1853 to 1863 the orops in Murray Township
soom io have beon fair, The first dry year ocourred
in 1864, when hay orops dropped and caused a severe
setback; but it had boen demonstrated that it was
foansiblo to roise gruin in the Livermore Valley, which
prior to this time had been considered barren,
At first it was not believed that the gravelly
gsoil of the valley would grow grein, but in that year
Richard Threlfall of Conterville plunted 4000 mores on
Franoisoo Auroccechea's farm and reaped twenty-four
bushels to the acre, After that the valloy was regarded
as the granary of the county, About 1880, howover, the
oulture of grapes becamo highly profitable and vine-
yurds began to replece fields of wheat and barley.
After 1887 the hay that was still harvested was highly
valuod as feed for troock horses and other suporior,



stook ond Livermore hay grown on the Altamont hills
has been ranked with tho bost and has been exported
in large quantities to England,

' Although the soill of the Sunol Valley produges chief-
1y hortioultural crops, it is also excellent for hay and
grain, From Pleasanton 4,000 tons of hay and 2,500 tons
of grain wers shipped during the month of Dacomber, 1888,
ghowing the early preominence of this seotion in that
type of produgse, The main orops of the valley are aprie-
oo'ts. tomatoes cnd walnuts, although olive orohords
thrive, owing to tho absence of Lfrost, On the rich
soil betwoen Pleasanton and Dublin, almonds, cpricots,
olives, peaches and plums are grown in abundance, The
bolsa, or bottom lund, around Pleoasanton was admirably
suited to tho cultivation of berrios and bumper orops
wora gathered in the eighties. On one occasion at leant,
tho Arroyo Mocho and Arroyo Valle overflowed this land
and did imsmonso damage. Fhenomonal orops grew around
Pleassanton, "On ono osoasion 14,375 pounds of wheat
cama into Pleasanton drawn by seven horsea", end other
products grew with oqual exuberancej "Indicns on the
Crow ronch raised soventy bushele of coxrn to the aoro”.
In the 90's tho average annu=)l oxrop of bects sont to
tho sugar mill at Alvarade was 9000 tons, Pomegruonatos,
opricots, choerries, prunes, apples and similsr fruits



were cultivated, Tho Huby Hill Vinsyard in 1894 ome
braced two hundred and fifty asores of wine grapes, and
approximately 1000 olive troes were planted eamong the
vines. A distillery vas constructed in 1694, and in
1897 a wine coellar was built to hold 300,000 gallons
and was lator enlarged, By 1898 tho Ruby Hill Vinoyard
was able to put on the mariot four carlocds of sauterno
and clarot,

In 1897 the peak haxrvest of hops was grown in the
noighborhood of Pleasanton, Hearly two million pounds
wore pioked, the cost of labor alone amounting to
$20,000,00, The Lilionthals of San Francisco in 1908
omed most of the hop fields around Pleasanton under
the noma Ploasanton Hop Yords Company, and one field
slong is said to have boon mg large as five hundred
aores in extent. '

To-day the chief products of the Pleasanton distriot
are winos, tomatoos, sugar beets, hay and grain, although
the dairies are oxcellont and the ares has valuable gra-
yol pito and good olay,.

At an carly date it woo discovered that the rogion
about Livermore is sdaptod to tho growth of almonds, and
in 1895 it wono estimated that fifty thousend pounds of
the nuts woro picksd - in addition of course, to apri-
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cots, figs, olives, peaches, plums and othor stons
fruits,

Tho development of agriculture in Murray Township
oroated commerce cnd it was commorce that led to tho
founding of towns, Tho first of these was Dublin, vhich
grow up around a Catholic Church erected near John
Groen's Hotel in 16859, about nins miles wost of Liver-
more on the road botwoen Oakland and Stookton, The
first neme of the hamlet wns Amadorj then it was ohanged
to Dougherty's Station - the Doughertys being large lende
holders in the vieinity - and lator it becume Dublin,
Although most of the residentes of tho rogion were Irish,
Mrs., Kate Tehan, an early sottlor, maintained that the
town was not nomed after the Irish capitsl, but recoived
its title from two inns, ona on each side of tho road,
so that the plece was originally Imown ann\;ly as Uouble
Inn, This wos later contracted to Dublin,

Joremiah Fallon and Hichael Murray, (Mrs. Tohen's
unole) wers the first Englishespesking sottlers in the
looality. Thoy orossed the plains from St, Joseph,
Missouri end dwolt temporarily in the Mission San Joae
buildings before coming to the Dublin region in 1849,
Mrs, Tehan's sunt, Katherine Murray, was born at the
Misoion on nny 17, 1847,

The Fallons purchasod some of Amador's property
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in 1849 and completed a house in 1851 - tho simpleont
kind of dwelling, with a shed kitohen cnd a dirt frloor,

John Green, another early settler, was a man of
varied éonownnhmnta. Emigrating from Irelend at the
ega of thirteen, he beocams apprenticed to a wholesale
drug ooncern in New York., Crecn remombered many formulos
of gompounds dispansed by this firm, although ho never
reveqlod them., Hot greatly interested in the drug bus-
iness, ha welcomsd the proposal of a brothor living in
San Antonio (Bast Oakland), to join him in Californis,

On taking leave of his employers in New York; he
promised never to reveal the secrot of one of thoir
loeding products, a compound called "Florida Wator."
When he arxrived in California, his brother porsuaded
him to set up a drug otore et San Antonio, which he did,
When a traveling salosman once tried to sell him some
"Florida Water" however, Green was able to detoot from
the taste that it was o fraudulant imitation, but he
vwould never reveal the ingrodients of the real prepara-
tion, Sometimos he used his talent as an aspotheocary
rather recklessly, on one occasion tasting stryohnine
to satisfy himself that it was adulterated,

About 1857 Greon wearied of keeping a drug stors
at San Antonio, He pooked up his chattols in an ox-cort



and moved aoross the Heyward hills to the spot on
which the prosont school house stands, Hero ho sot-
tled on well-watored, wooded land which he judged to
be oxtremoly rich, But no soonor had ho pitohed his
tont cnd turnod to unlosd his wagon than Michael Murray
oams over from his homestead on the Stockton Road and
informod Green that ho was “squatting” on land which
was in disputo betwoen Murray and Jemos Witt Dougherty,
coch of the claimants ssserting that he had purchased
tho land from Amador. HNovertheloss, Murray invited the
nowoomer to take up his residonce on tho Murray farm,
Groon 41d so and five yoara lateor, in 1862, bought out
his benefactor for $6,000,00, He ncgquired the lurrey
lawguit as woll as his land however, but lator sottled
the dirffioulty with Dougherty out of court for $900,00.
In 1864 Greon built a store, whioch still stonds at
the intersection of the Stockton and Sunol roads. He
kept the storo at ghin location and later at Groonville,
four miles east of Livermore. In addition to conduoting
his business at the store, Groen alsc worked a lerge
ranch and studied law in the moager spars time that
these duties allowed him, He was partioularly intorested
in the land lawsp pertaining to Moxican grants, The
heads of Spanish end Mexionn families, who rogaxded him



as a truo friend, often visited him in the evening to
obtain advioce on their logal problems, He was woll
suited to this role of advipor, for with ocustomary
diligenoce he had learned Spanich while appronticel to
the Now York drug firm, which had trade relations with
gouth Amoriocan countries.

Miohaol Murray, who gave his nama to the towmship,
wags a prosporous sheop raisor for many years and o prome
inont local politician, 1In 1876 ho had retired from
farning and was living in San Franciocoo.

In 1889 tho first sohoolhouse was ocompleted at
Dublin and for the first timeo tho Amorican flag was
formally raised above o school in the township., Around
a little nuolous consisting of tho home of Groon, the
church, the school and a hotel built by John Scarlott
and his partnor named Grandleos, tho settlement of
Dublin slowly grew,

Tho second villago in tho towmship was Socott's
Cornors., The germ of tho pottlemont was the store
orooted in 18680 by George Foscolini at the junotion of
the Alisal and Laddsville (Plonsanton and Livermore)
roads, Thic ntore lator camo into the hands of Thomas
Scott, who built a two-story structure across the road

from the old onc-story building, end from that time on
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tho locality was known as Scott's Cormors. The original
store otill stands, though it is not in use,

Ono of tho decendants of the Sgott family tells
how the earthquake of 1868 torrified the little town:

"In 1865, my fathor moved to Scott's Cornors.

His businoss at Hiles was later sold to William

Snydor, who married my siotor Clera., Mr, Snyder

remained in the general merohandise line for many
ors, as woll as sorving many terms as postmastoer.
ono know Niles who 4didn*t Jmow Mr. Snyder.

Thore wag & large corral at Scott's Corners, built
of split oak poles and about seven feot in hoight,
with a snubbing pole in ito conter. It was in the
fall months of 1888 ~ there was probably fifteen
hoad of horses in the corral at the time, About
oight o'olook in the morning of this fateful day,
wo noticed those horses, hoads and tails up, rune
ning about aa if in a l‘mlpodo; thon we hoard a
low, rumbling roar - the ocarth at first seemed to
tromble, then it began a violeont shake, probably
lapting for a minute, more or loss, We wero in
our firat shock of the big carthquake of 1868,
Those tremors continuod intormittingly up to about
four o'elook in the aftornoon, The first shook
being ths most sovore, I, thon a small boy, hung
on to my mother's dress, following hor whorover
ghe went, She seomed to be as muoh socared as I
wap, It appeared to be in tho mouths of cvoryone
that tho earth was neor its ond, Mothor opened
the door of tho milk room, All tho contents of the
. many of milk wore on tho floor, Aoross the
road in father's ntore, orockery, patent medioines
in thoir bottles, as woll ap othor shelf goods,
filled the aisles; moat all was a total loss, I
doubt 4if there was 2 brick chimney in Murray or
Viaphington Township that hod not fallen or neecded
:oz:u. It was reported that a fiasure was oponed
between Milpitas and San Jose that extended for many

8.7
Laddoville was tho firat nome of tho settlomont
aftorwarde called Livermore, It cams into being about



1864, A otors was begun at tho site of the town by
Robort Crahom in the spring of 1858. Then, in 1864,
Alfonso Ladd, who had arrived in the region in 18350,
took up one hundred sixty aores of land noar the old
Livormore rosidonce and built a house on the prop-
orty = the first building in what ho called Laddsvillo.
Soon after, hs also ereotod a hotel, necar which Honry
Goethon opened a store in 1805, and sghortly after a
snithy was addod to the thres other bulldings. Alexe
ander Mosa then opensd a saloon and in 1888, R. W,
Grasham ostablished a largor store. Finally an Italien
rostaurant, a third merchandise atore, a drug store,
snothor saloon end a few repidences begun to give the
place o distinotly urban aspeat,

Koaping a hotel in thoso carly doys of tho towne
ship of'ten exposod tho host to grave annpi-. Thore
woroe somo thoroughly had characters in tho County and
pioneor hotels and saloons were almost sure to receive
thoir unwelcome patronage. Ladd onco noarly lost his
life in a wild battle with ono of these ruffiens numed
Hyde.

On the morning of August 9, 1868, before pgoing to
the barroom of Ladd's hotol, Hydo was overheard saying

that ho had decided to “have a man for supper" - whothor

through drink or braggadocio or a murderous intention,

1901



108

no ono ocould say, Soms tima later in tho day Hyde,
intoxiocated, went up to Ladd's bar and ordered another
drink, Seoing the condition of the man end fearing
troublo, Ladd rofused to sorve him, Eyde flew into a
™go soized a pitchor and a heavy beer mug and attaocked
Ladd go furiously that ho was injured and hod soms dif-
fioulty grappling with his assailont, - Throe mon, hoare
ing the fraoas, ren into tho barroom, At the moment
thoy ontored two fatal pistol shots rang out. Hyde's
finger had pulled the trigger; but Ladd, with a last
frantio effort had turned tho muzzleo away from his owm
hoart towards Hyde ond the latter was mortally wounded.
Ladd was exonerated.

In 1869 the nome Laddsville woo changed to Livor-
more by William Mandenhsll., The railroads woro pushe
ing dovolopment in California and Mendenhall, who owned
o lorge farm noar Laddsville, gave twonty aores of lund
to the Central Paoific fRailroad, about & half mile wost
of Laddsville, The railroad dbuilt a dopot and Mondon-
hall surveyed a townsoite and nomed tho new place after
Robort Livermore. OC. J. Stovens built e grist-mill,
end in a short tims Livormoro had all the appearsnce of
& thriving young city, with its own hotel, warchousse,
stores ond reoidonces, On account of the railroad, the
town flourished ond after ovorshadowing Laddsville,



finnlly absorbed 1it.

Lika tho famous Topsy, tho town of Sunol apparente
1y "Just growed"; there is no speocific time or ovent
from whioh to date its origin, The first references to
a definite settlemont hore wore mado when a Fronchman
named Bortrand opened tho Argenti Hotol "in Sunol," in
'1868, and when Mra., Samiol Brown is reforred to as
teaching sohool "ot Sunol" in 1885, Other dovalopmonts
soon followed; Michaol Fegan purchased a farmj R. I.
Oreham was conducting @ genoral merchendise store in
18684 anton Baxdollini opened e restaurant and & Mr,
Elliot operated = livery stable,

Some detuils have already boon given oconcorning
.4he Tirat water company in Murray Township, originated
by Chorlss Haodsell, Theo company was lator merged with
the Calavoras Water Compony before the entire organiza-
tion was purchased by tho Spring Valloey Wator Company
of Sen Franoisco,

Sunol possesses the only water temple in the United

States - @ dome supported by lofty columns, Inside the
oolumns there is a gallory from which the visitor nay
look deeop down into s tiled basin, end into this basin
o noioy casoade comos leaping from the Spring Valley
pipelines - a play of pure and sparkling water that
holds the observer fascinated.
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In tho hoart of the hills near tho northeastorn
oxtremity of Murrsy Township, and obout elght miles
from Livermore, Sdward Hoblor founded the town of
Altamont in 1869, On mooount of its location the
placo hans not grovn in commoroicl importaonce, although
1t lios in the Altamont or Livermore Pass on tho groat
highway that conncots Alameda County with the San Joae
quin Valloey.

Tho dato of the founding of Ploasanton is difficuld
to rix, Althouch tho olemonts of n community wore to be
soon thore as early as 1868, thoy were given a definite
tovn formation only aftor tho complotion of the railroad
in 1869, Ono of tho loading pionocers, John W, Kottingoer,
ocuma into the townghip 4n 18650 nnd acquired a ranch from
which he moved in 1851 to a pite Jmowmn as Alisal, whioch
at that time hud no population, The noarest house was
Augustin Bernal's, built tho year bofore about & mileo
to the west, KEKottinger put up a house and was joined
the following year, 1852, by Juan Bornal, who orsoted
an adobo homo neay Xottingor's but on the opposited bank
of Arroyo Vallo Creek. Kottinger not long aftor married
ono of Bornal's deughters and recoived some of his
fathor-in-law's acres as hio bride's dower. In 1857 ho
rontad his house to two partnors, Duorr and Nusbaumor,
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who converted it into a genoral astoro.

At length, nbout 1863, Kottinger began to think
of starting a town on tho sito of his ranch at Alisal
ond was socondod in this dosign by Joshua A, loal who
had been an oversscor on Livermore's ronoho boforo come
ing to tho Alisal noighborhood. Neal also married one
of Augustine Bernnl's daughters, hor dower amounting
t0o five hundrod cores of land, Keol and Xottingor
fipally combined forces in tho projeot of founding and
doveloping & tom, A public ochool, tsught by a man named
Powoll, was ootablichod in 1884 and Kottingox orocted a
hotol in 1865 which was loaged two yenra lator by Bardel-
1in{ - who sooms to have baen ubiquitous in the early his-
tory of the township, Othor sottlora ocame to tho place,
industry began and little by littlo Alisel (Pleasanton)
grow until 1t was o flouriching towm. y

Through a quiet, poaceful country-side, the Alisal
roglon was somohow popular with outlaws whooe oxploits
thoro add ocolor and asotion to tho hiostory of the looality,.
Ono dremetic oncounter will always be remonberod, tho
shooting of & famous bandit by on oven more famous ponco
officer,

On Seoptombor 19, 1860, Ploasanton, or Alisal, was
the sceno of an exoiting gun battle botween tho intropid
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Alamods County Sheriff, Horry Morse, ond tho noted out-
law, Haroisco Borjorques. Borjorques wes o desperado

of tho first rank; he stopped at no deviltry. Thore wasn
& strong prosumption that ho had murdered the Golding
family in the Sunol Valley in 1859, and that he had
burned their bodies in the house and had hanged a vaquero
to a nearby treo. iHe had olain ons of his own gang,
Quarto, in a dispute over the division of booty end hod
otherwise added to his professional reputation with vari-
ougs major felonies, beforo he finally ran foul of Sheriff
Morss. In this samo yoor, 1868, before his encounter
with Morse, Borjorques murderod s butcher neaxr Fleasanton
end stole §120,00 from his viotim, but there were no wite
nooses and Narcisco complacently went about his bdbusiness
emong the quiet little villages of the totngahlp.

Sheriff Morso had roceiwved a letter from theo authori-
ties of Los Angeles County stating that this outlaw was
wanted in the South on a oriminal charge. MNorse, nover
lax in the performance of his duty, at once mado propar-
ations to capture Borjorquas, Ho traced the Mexicon
from Mission Sen Jose to Alisnl end there letcrned thatb
the bandit had ridden north not half an hour before,
carrying an oxtra saddle, Morss folt surc ho would
roturn and hid in Foocolini's ptoro to wait for him,



A ghor$ timo lator, Karoisco rode up to tho store,
vhiotling, and was casually invited to oomo in, EHe
suspooted an ambush howover, and rofused to dismount,
Thorouybn Morse onma rushing out of his hiding place
und made for the mounted man with all spoed, at the
samo timo xoaohing into his bdreast pooket for a pair of
handouffe. KNaroisco whippod out a pistol and fired
point-blank at tho on-goming shoriff, Tho gun missed
fire, Inastantly Morso drow ond fired, but his ghot
wont wild, In & flash, Borjorques wheoled his horse
and nnc’uvny. Thon o second ghot from the sheriff's
platol struck the fleeing outlaw in the sidej ho throw
up his arm, dropped his pilstol and uttored £ loud groan,
But ho was noither killed nor taken, A fenco barred his
woy and Naroisco leaped off his horso and escaped in a
ravino, Thorough search by a posse failed to discover
him, Borjorques had had onough of Shoriff Morse and
Murray Towmship however. He loft thio part of tho state
and was later killed in Southern California.

In 1867 Kottinger made o purvey of Pleasanton, but
ao we hnve poon, it wop not until 1869, when the raile
roud entored the township, that the village really be-
gan to grow. The railrced played o large part in tho
dovelopment of the ocounty, c«o is shown in the following

quoint oxtract from en agoount by one of the pioneors:
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"In 1864 thoy started to build a railroed through
the Niles Oanyon., Cox and Arnold wore given tho
contract., Aftor the work wns partly finished,
MoLaughlin, who was to finance the work, rofused
to furnish more money. The matorinls for the road
wore nl) attached and a kecper appointed. Finally
tho Central Pacific was given tho right to finish
tho work, The depot located at itp prosent sito,
was namod Niles, Vallojo Mills, tho nomo of the
old lundmark, beonmo past history., Thore wos one
othor grist mill at Mission San Josc during this
poricd owned by a Mr, Loumciator, located on Mill
Crook. HNo doubt the orecok derived its namo from
that faot, Cape Horn was tho nome given to that
high mountain whioh gave tho Central Paoifioc so
much trouble, not slons in cost, dbut in deleying
trains from Niles to Sunol. The bapo of this
mountain was at tho first turn in tho traock out
of Nileos, a short distonce up-strosm from the
grist-pill, on the north bank of Alamoda Creek.
This mountain, bluff-like, dippod sharply to ths
orock, and wns made up of many huge boulders and
rooks which gave way in wintexrtimes to slides cove
oring the traok. It was many yours beofore tho up=-
por faco wan out baok far enough to prevent fure
ther troublo.

The complotion of those bunds of steel, boginning
at tho Onkland Mole and reanching out to the Atlan-
tic sido, was one of the most important ovents of
the Wost, Bafore the complotion of this trans-
continental railroad, most all of our supplios
camo by sailing ships around Cape Hornm, thus en=
tailing months of timo on routo., Tho pamo oON-
ditions provailed in passengor ond mail sorvice.
I doudbt if a holiday deoclared by proolamation
would have seen more people along tho right of vn{
of this railrond than thore wore the day the firas
train oamo through with tho wostern officisls
nboard its locomotive - with an oight foot boiler
and a ton foot stuok, puffing and smoking up the
NHiles Canyon through Sunol and Livermore Vaelloys,
over the Altamont Pass seross the great Sen Joaguin
ond Sooramonto Valloys on to Utah, whoxe the last
ldon spike was driven on May 10, 1868, connodt-
tho oost with the wost by rail - the dawning
of a mightior Wost,
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Nilos beocams quite on important railroad point,

The "pushers" (extra locomotives) were stationed

here to help heavy trains up to the summit pass

et Altamont, All orops raiged in tho Livermore,

Plessanton and Sunol Velleys, prior to the cofie

plotion of the railroad, wore hauled by teams

into Washington Township, to tide-wanter for ship-

mant, The road through the Kiles Canyon was but

2 trail at that timo, hardly passable in gumRor-

time and impassable in winter months - honoe all

the teaming and hnuling off of orops was via Scott's

Corners and over the HMission hills, going westward,"

It was in Murray Township, tradition says, that
the inspiration for the founding of Stanford Univeraity
cams to Lelend Stanford. Stanford end hic wife, return-
ing fyrom n trip to Buropo, had to pass through Livermore,
fhen the train stopped at the station, he took the op-
portunity of greeting a orowd of woll-wishers who had
gothered thers. Stonford had just begun to speck from
tho rear platform of his oar when he was interrupted by
the orying of a ohild in the crowd, Nrs, Stanford asked
if she might tnke the infant, and in her orms it wos
soon papified and stopped orying. During his eddress,
the famgus man looked at the ohild eradled in his wife's
bosom and was so moved by the memory of their own lost
son that he ocut the thread of his remarke and annocunced
that he had just then deoided fo found a university Tor
poor students who could not otherwise finieh their cdu-

ocation, The editor of the Livermore Herald, W, P, Barte
lott, broadorst this nows to the San Francisco press ond



it oproad to all parts of tho world,

It is sipgnificant to note in conncotion with tho
railroad, that the dnto of its complotion, 1889, marks
oithor the founding or tho oxtonsion of most of the
towns in the Murray arca,

The beginning of Livermore. was direotly oconncoted
with tho entry of the Cantral Pooific into tho valloy.
Owing to Mondonhall's foresight in donating lend to
the railroad, tho new town bocamo the commeroial center
of tho region ond Laddsville went out of existence.

The station becsme the center of a group of buildings:
The Livermore Hotel, Cataniocke's and theo Golden Star
Hotol, Bowle's Skating Rink and Mondenhall's warchouse,
all built in 1869, The first brick building wos put

up in April 1870, the ground floor boing oocupied by
ohops and tho sscond story by the Palece Hell, which
wos usod as e sooisl centor, Tho firat College in the
rogion was mado possible also by the dbenofaction of
i1lliam Mendenhall, when he prosented a strip of land

to Dr. and Mrs, Kingsbury in 1870, as a site for Liver-
moro College. Professor J. D. Smith, who during the
early dnys of the County had beon & membor of the facule-
ty of Vashington Collegs, lator purchased tha institution
from the Kingsburys, Botwoon 1870 nnd 1872 the popula=-



tion of Livermore grow at & rate whioh must have been
sncournging to the foundors of tho towm. The oxtont
and varioty of dusinesc many bo gathorod from the found-
ing of tho Livermoro Springs Wator Company, Horton and
Konnedy's Lumber Yard, Waterman Company's warehouse,
John Sylwoxrd's carricge faotory, the Livermorc Browery,
and the Olivina vinoysrds. It wos the Livermore Coal
Company, organized in 1875, that openod shafts at ver-
ious placos in Corral Hollow,

Coal had bean found in tho Hollow in 1860 by Cap=-
tain J’;mk O'Brien, who promotod o company to exploit
hio discovery. This vein, oight foot thiock and composed
of & light bituminous grade of coal, mingled with olny;
slato, spar end sulphur, was sold to the William Coleman
Compuny of San Francisco, but the purchapers never
worked tho olaim, For two months the Centrzl Pacifio
oporated a coal mino belonging to a Stockton company
but discontinued, apparently through dissatisfaotion
with the guality of conl produced, On HMarech 4, 1874,
Thomas Harris digeoverod o vein in tho Arroyo locho
and in the following year the Livormore Coecl Compony
was formed to mino the deposit, Later another discove
ory wop mado and the Sumait Compeny wns organized,
Until 1917 tho old Corral Hollow minos wore worked by
tho Topla Company.
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The Livormore intorprisc, which two yoara lator
chonged its nome to Herald, wos established in 1874
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with W, P, Bartlott ns oditor, A fire company wags orgaone

izod in the town about 1874; loosl farmors assccieted

to form a grange in the spamo yoar and a bank and a libro-

ry appeared in 1875, At longth the rapidly growing
tom was _lnoorpomted on April 30, 1876, with a populae
tion of 830 porsons, 254 buildings and town proporty
with an optimated valuo of $600,000.00.

* Sinco tho time of its incorporation Livermorc has
made stendy snd normal progross until it is now the
largest ond bost-)mown city in Murray Township.

Hany factors in the growth of tho rogion around
Livermore are of no groat oxtrinsic importonce but
oarry o certain interest to those concerncd with the
country-sido and also illustrate the way in which a
community dovolops. For oxample, about 1885 the iAqua
do Villa Springs, situntod on the property of W, M,
Mondenhall about ton miles northenst of Livermore,
were oxtensively patronizod co a health rogsort. The
water contained large porcentages of sodium and magnes-
ium solts. In the samo yoor & high grade of ohromite
wae found near the town., In 1886 a telophone system
woo establishod betwacn Livermoro and the arroyo Velloy



vinoyards, Hendenhall ‘iscovered gold end silver ore
on his health resort property in 1689, Durins the fol-
lowing winter, innumerable robins, forced by hoavy
gnows in the hills %o soek shelter in the valley, wore
slaughtered by market hunters. One hunter killed four
thousand birxds - 'in four aights merely by firing ot ran-
dom in the treos in which thoy roosted, esnd recoived
forty cents a dozen for thom in San Franoisoo, In 1881
the Farmor's VWarehouse Company was formed, By 1803 the
use of Chinsse labor in the vineyards had becomo o
source of great irritation to local farmors end they
bogon to oxprens their anti-Oriental views; the roo-
{donts of Livermore and its vioinify asscmbled and
pussed strong resolutions against the omployment of
coolies., In August, 1803, the Union High School, a
new building consisting of four main claaa-room and &
lerge basoment wap formally openod by Prosident Martin
Kellogg of the University of Celifornia assisted by the
County Superintendent of Schools and the high schonl
prinoipal. Presbyterion and Methodist churches were
erooted in 1871 nnd 1888 respootively and in 1891 Arch-
bishop Riordan dedicated a Catholic Churoh,

Thuo did the tovmohip grow; o mere catalogue of
minor events 1t is trus, but each of these ovents, and
a thousand others, was a symbol of the honest ondoavor
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of poaceful, neighborly poople to bdbuild a community
they ocould be proud of.

Livermoro connot bo dismissed without somo rofore
oncoe %0 its moot picturesque institution, the rodeo.

The rodeo is the parado and ths sport of ocattle
country. It is a pageant compounded of theo round-up
ond the Spanish fiootn, and it is at homo in Livermore.
The firot modoyn rodeoo weg held in 1918 to rsiso funds
for tho Rod COross during the World Wer, end wos on out=-
ntm;dins guccess, MNore than 8000 visitors wers attracted
to the town snd slmost $5,000,00 wore reslized by tho
pponsoras, This encouragod tho promoters of the rodeo
to stage enother show in 1919, the reoeipts to go townrds
o voterans' memorinl pork in honor of 339 Livermore man
who fought in tho World ¥War, For threc dsys thie rodoo
onteortained over 16,000 visitors, Horses ond stookn wore
brought from noer and far and gave an exhibiticn of
riding and roping ond dangerous cowboy sports unexcelled
in tho history of California, T7The Livormoro Rodoo 0b-
tablished a reputation for fair pluy and some of the
bont cowboy tolant in the entire West entered tho list
(or should one say tho corral) in the heart of Murray
Township. Purses up to §10,000,00 wore awarded in 1919,
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To-day tho rodeoo is mannged by the Livermoro
Stoclazon's Agsociantion and ranks with tho olnapie
spootacles at Pondloton and Cheyenno. It has bocome
an institution and exports nay that it morits the title
of "Tho World's Fantest Rodeo."

Hoxt to livestook raising, tho most valuable indus-
triop of Livormore axo viticulturo and wine moking. The
valloy to=day producos o grade of dry, white wino in
demand all over the country., The Volotead Aot throw
wina producors into consternation, but with the ropanl
of Prc'ahibium pnany hundrods of persons immodiatoly
wont baock to work in tho vinoyurds ond wineriecs. In
1834, 1,890,000 gallons ware produced in the Livermore
rogion and 500,000 gallono of aged wine wore put on tho
markot,

In 1869 the Centrel Paoifio Railroad Compeny laid
its traoks through the villags of Alisal on a four hune
drod foot right of way granted by tho natiocnal govorne
mont, Although the sottlomant had alwayn been imown
ng Alisal, the railroad company changed the nome in
honor of General Plensanton, supposedly the first man
to come to tho town by railway.

It would be difficult to exaggeorats tho egrioule
tural importance of the Ploaspanton roglon, but tha chiel



historical intercot of the loonlity lionm in itsm

annals of horse-brocding and raoing, In the carly
70's Augustin Bernal laid out & ono mile rage traok
Just outaide tho town and tho stockmon of the vioinity
formad tho Jookey Club, Bornel's stable feoilities
must have been excellent (foreomating the preeminence
of Ploaoganton); in 1875 his bay horse took firat place
in o running roce against Alviso's bay mare by five
lengtho and won & heavy purse for his baokors. It iso
surprising how quickly the famo of Pleaganton's bdlooded
horses and the cxoollonco of the track won national
ronown., By tho middle 80'o gportsmen werce beginning

to gathor hore from foar and wide and the season of Hove
onmbor, 1885, was vory sugocssful, Tho bost time made
by the competing thorough-bredns, homr.‘un only throo
minutes.

The Pleosanton treok, or rather txacks, (the outer
being one mile and a half in length and tho innor omo
milo) were built on the most favorable scil and under
tho bost conditions possible, Tho land was formed in
prehiotoric times by the overflow from Arroyo Mocho
Creek, with a depth of sixty~rfive foot of altornato
ptrata of oilt and sand, According to an early author-
ity the track was by accidont built almost idsally with



the contor highor then tho nides so that surfnoe wator
drains off almont imuodiately and thie natural drainsge
is ococolorated by two oculverts, Thirty-rive minutes
aftor roin occases the track is suitable for working out
o horse,

These track conditions, in conjunotion with oli-
matio edvantages, coused carly sports writors to rofer
to Pleasanton as "Horso Heaven,” Tho water supply is
unusually pure, filtering through pix milos of gravel
in the noardy mountains and green feod is available
ovory month of the year - a groat ald in the ocondition-
ing of horses, Tho crowning attraction of Floasanton
for trainers, however, is tho ready oupply of Ploapan-
ton red oat hay, But not oven o diot of red ocat hay
alono $o considored f£it for raoing thoroughbrods; the
hay grown in tho bottom lunds is deemsd too coorss and
fidbrous and the most prized vurioty Lo that raised in
the foothila where it does not grow too rankly and
thus soquires @ high sugar content, The climato muat
bo werm and dry and the harvest orows must be woll
trained in tho art of curing the orop properly. Fhen
all of these precoutions are obmorved the hay will
nover bBo dry or musty or impair tho wind of the vale
unble horsesn that eat 1it,
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It 1o paid that the wide rocognition of Plensanton
ao o rooing town was lorgely dus to Monroe Saliobury,
who owned the track during the 80'p. Salisbury acguired
o three-year old black stallion, Direotor, for J10,000.00.
Trained at Pleasanton for harness racing, Dirsctor began
sotting o fast pace for his compotitors by making o ro=-
cord of 2,23 during his tour of the state. On o tour
of the castern traoks, Director won furthor distinction
by defeating tho bost horsos in tho country, roturning
with & record of 2,17. Eastorn sports writers of the
doy . leuded him as tho greatent horse ever seen on any
turf., Dirocotor wus finnlly disablod by an accident
and returnod to the stud, producing six trotters, ono
of which, Direcet, madeo a rocord of 2.08 for tho milo.

In tho opinion of a pilonocor trainor and driver of
harness horses, Fred Chadbourne of Pleasanton, tho
firat two Fleasanton horses to add lustor to the nams
of thoir homs Sown werc the stallion Dircet (by Diroo=-
tor) and tho mare Gold Loaf (by Sidney). aAbout the
samo timo Salisbury had under loase the famous Criokot
(by Steinway), holdor of the World's Highedheel paoing
recoxd, Othor famous ragors from the Salisbury stablos
vore Dirootum, Azote, Alix and Direotly, Direotly held
the world two-year-old raecord, and accoxding to locnl
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tradition, Direotum'o cchicvemsnts later addod great
luster to the Pleasanton traok and astablos.

Seliebury at ono tims owned another outstonding
horse, Sidnoy, which ho sold to Count Giulio Valensin,
who purohased 140 aores of the Hanoho Santa Hita during
m oightics aund sot up & otable thoxo with a track and
a brooding farm, Heo is bast lmown for his owmorship of
Sidney, e great sire, who produced not only fast mature
oolts but colts whioh dovelopaed spood vory young, OUne
of Sidney's offspring, Frou Frou, won the yoarling
trotting record and anothor, Fausta, captured tho world's
proing recoxd for one-yooar oldo.

One of the profitable sidelines of raoinsz wns tho
developmant of speody colts for the May sale at Erain-
bridge Park in Cleveland, Ohio. Oauromig horsen
always brought high prices beoruse thoy had been trained
during the temperato Californin winter cnd so wore oll-
abled to excel the castern horsos that had to bo indoors
during the wintex months, XHor this roason many castoern
stablos bogan shipping their horses to Plensanton for
early opring training ond racing on Californin tracks.

Studs were ownod by Senator Hoarst and Valensin,
ond in sddition to thepe othors woro oporated by H.
Wilmeek, Gilbert Thompkins and J, C. Simpson. In 1691



o stallion bred by Simposon was sold at Loxington,
Kontueky for $65,000,00,

The rocing scamon of 1898 at Ploapanton wis cone
sidorod nn outstanding sporting ovent and atitracted
large orowds, The prinoipal events wore paoing,
trotting and running, thouch the harnoss rosd races
nloo oxoited greant intercst. The chief stalwa at this
mooting wore tho Hop, Morrira und Morcuntile,.

At this timo high grade driving horgsos wors groat-
1y in demend, Tho Floasanton stables ranked high in
breoding and Sheir thoroughbrod animals wore famous
almost ovarywhors; many of tho speodiest horsos and
moot okillful drivors wore tmainad hore. Some of the
fastor lorses in the mile raoe wero Conoy (2:01%),
Annconde (2:02§), Alix (2:1081), Klatasch (2:04 5/4),
Directum (2:115}), Pally Dillon (8:07}), Diablo (2:093%),
Jamio (2:09%) and others.

Mot only the horses bdut drivers as well achlioved
foms at Pleaganton, Among famous drivers who agguired
thoir skill on ths Plessanton courgo Wore Zudd Doble,
Androw MoDowell, Myron McHonxy (who drove Dan Patch),
Jaock and Gil Curry, Chorles Durfee and Jamos Suthore
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land, ZEqgually notable as trainers wore Havis James, who

managod Rogor J. HaoKonmlo's stablej Tom Keating,



Je Kolloy, the famouv George Stanr, Millard Sandors
{ remonmbered for his training of Lou Dillon), Murray,
Frod Chadbourno, Charles de Rydor and iUilliam Goers.
Tho last namo of this list L8 perhaps tho most
fllustrious, ¥#illiam Geors was affcotionately known
Yo a whole genoration of raoing funs ao "01ld Pop Gours,
the Grand 014 Mun of Harnoss Raoing." Hisc wap the
kind of perscnality around whom logonds pgrow, JFrod
Chadbourne, who traninod and dxove at Ploasanton for
thirty-two years, offorod this tostimonial to the chare
cotor of thoe vetaoran Geexras
"0ld Pop CGeors wans hore about 1690 to '95., I wanm
Just a kid then, Ho was one of the most lovablo
charnotors that over graged o rece track, Tho
orowds would cheer him moro even when ho lost
than thoy would applaud any othor driver whon
that driver won.

Ho was o vory quiot, soft-spoken man who never
paid a bud word about any man or anybody's horse.

014 Pop Geors pnid ono of the dangers %o & new
sastorn trainer working his horscs on the Fleasan-
ton truok wop over-troaining., This wos boocauso the
oaptorn trainer was not used to having good troine
ing doys all tho time,"

Theo traok passod from the hands of Monroo Salige
bury into those of Tom Keating and Low Crellin, tho
formoy an ountaidor and tho latter a local Ploasanton
man, ‘Theso partnera reced Soarchlicht, holder of the

ono, two and throe-ycoar-old paoing reoords, Theoy also
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handled inacondn, the world titlo-holder in tho gelding
olagn., Koanting and COrellin disposed of the traok to
Tom Honan of Walla Walle, Waphington, who shortly after-
ward turned it over to a mon from Orogon nomed Armsirong.
It wag during Armstrong's two-yoor rogimo that tho most
famous horse of the day, Lou Dillon performed at the
local traok. dho was the first harness hormo to covor
the mile in loss than two minutes (1:568)) ond hor ro-
cord of £5§) mocondo for the quarter-milo, officially
timed, 1o naid by Frod Chadbourne of Pleasanton to be

o record novor oquallad before or since by any trotter.
Lou Dillon wog sired by Sidnsy Dillon, and he by Sidney,
which Monroe Salisbury hed sold to Count Valensin,
Sidnoy's much~toanted grand-daughtor, Lou Dillon, was
bred and omed by Henry and Ira Pilerce of thg Santa Ropa
Stook Farm and wno trained at Pleasanton by Millard San-
dora, proviously mantionod ns one of the more noted
trainors, #hen Henry Plerce died, the horse wags put

up at auction and wans bought by tho How York multi-
millionaire sporteman, O, K, G. Billings, who used hor
45 0 DUGRY marv,.

Armatrong sold the Pleasanton trook to Roper J,.
HaoKonzio, son of Sir William MaoXonzio, Canadisn rail-
road sycoon. The younger MooKensio brought with him a
lorge saring of hormes to Lo trainad at Fleasanten,



whiah he doclared to boe the bost place on earth for
such o purposa. Ho wao so taken with the oharms of
the locality that he began buyling up all the property
ko oould, averring that he omned roal estate in almost
overy otato byt his Ploasanton traoct was the ono picco
.that no one in the world oould buy from him at any
price, The two most noted horses ownod by MacKonzie
at Ploapanton wors Bormon MoEinnoy ond Joe PFatchen the
Socond,

' Aftor MacKensio's death, Gad Byron and Jemes ¥,
6'nm, Joint omers of tho Thornoliffe track at Toron-
to, Concds ond the Bowie traock noaxr Baltimore, ¥ary-
land, cams into control of tho Flessenton establishe
mnt, Thoy beonme purtnors with the MaoXenzio ootata,
cach owmning ona third, ‘

Byron and MogKonzie changed the Fleasanton ragco-
gourse to a running, rathor than a pacing or trotting
traok, HAunners require softor going then pacers or
trottors, therefore theo two latter types of horsoes
geasad coming to Pleoasanton, After thia change in the
charaoter of the track, A, B, Spreckeols of San Frans
oisco sent over a stablo of colto for conditioning and
training end out of this atring came two horses of
championship oolibre, Runstar end Morvich, HRunstar



won tho Coffroth Hundioap ot Agus Oaliente, $50,000,00;
Morvich, sold %o Bonjamin Hlook of How York, won the
Hontucky Derby and other importunt conteosts.

Tho trook begnn to deoline after tho introduction
of the automobilo. In tho days of harnoas racing sta-
ble owners paid part of thoir exponsss by selling to
buggy drivers horsoo whioh did not guite mecgure up to
raoing requirements, Tho track wns cporated howevar,
up to the timo of the World ¥ar and both harncos and
running roces was fonturod, But the glory of tho old
treck wos gonoj oven boforo tho war the Alamada County
Failxr wos hold in tvwo largs buildings orectod in the
rage-track grounds., Since wer days it hoas beon used
only as a training ground for running horses. Among
raoing mon it is oxicmatio that horses who have wine
tored at Flessonton muat be watohoed in nprin\g raoing,
no mattor what their conditiom wna before thoy wore
taken thore, ‘Tho modorn wondor horso, Scabinmouit wna
worked out thore for ten days during the wintor of 1988
boonuse of the muddy condition of traocks elsewhoro.

In addition to horse raoing, movie making was ot
one tima what might be ocalled an oconsional indusntry
of tho rogion. Producers used the Fleaganton locolo as
a setting suitable for New England films, although
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lighting ond westher conditions as well ap othor sdvone
tagos olso prompted their oeclection of this reglon. Two
of the more outstonding filma mnde hoxre wore "Hobeooa

of Sunnybrook Farm" and "Huokleborry Fimm".

The old Rose Hotel was heoadquartors for raoing
and motion piocture peoplo, and someotimos as many as
throo hundred in a oant on looation would foregathor
there, Among tho famous nomes on the rogister are
thomo of Mary Piokford, Hlanohe Swoot, Dorothy Fhillipn,
House Potors, Tom Mix, Dustin Fornum, Charliec Chaplin,
Jeenotte MagDonnld (long before stardom), Poln Hegri,
Viola Dann and Douglas HaoLoan,

In 1897 Dr. W. H. Copo disoovored noar the centoexr
of Fleasanton a largo natural woll which wos the bogin-
ning of & wator-works for tho town, It wap found that
42,000 gallona flowed from the woll every twonty-four
hours, and the tomn trustcecs aoted quickly ocnd pure
ochnged thrao noraes surrounding tho woll, A 50,000 gal-
lon roservoir was installed near et hand and a pumping
plunt ronised the water 128 feot to thd top of a hill,
where ¢ 200,000 gallon roporvoir was built, Hydrant
progsure in the town pipos was sixty pounds and could
be raisod at will to ninety poundsa,

On June 30, 1902 tha Board of Supervisors rocoived



potitions from the rosidontas of Eden and of Murray
Townships roquesting the division of Eden into two
tovnahips, to be known as Zdon and Castro, and of ifure
ray into two tovmships to bo known ap Murray and Pleasan=
ton. Tho roapon mlleoged for the division was faoilitate-
ing tho olcotion of oconstadblon and justiocos of tho penoo.
Tho potitions woro roooived and on tho motion of Super-
visor Horner, soconded by Suporvisor Church, wore refor-
rad to tho distrioct attornoy with instruction to di-
vido'tho townships ns roquoested,

" on July 5, 1902, tho doy pot for hoarins and con-
sidoration of objeotions, no protost against tho divi-
sien of Murray Tommaship wag ontored, and tho maasuro
wos unanimously passed by tho board, The Township of
Plousanton oano into boing on August 4, 1902, Petition
for tho division of Edon Township was rojoo\tod.

Qutstanding emong contemporary events in the tome=
ship i the annusl Flogta dol Vino, a vintago fostival
held in the town to colobrate tho harvesting of the
@epo orop ond ftos manufaoture into wine, For two days
of tho your (eabout August 280 and 29) Ploasanton stroots
are gay with tho costumog and music of tho dygone Spane
ich oxo; onco again gaballoros and sonoritas aro seon
in tho stroects eond everyono rojoicos that anothor yuur's



217

work hos beoon well dono.

Anothor groat industry in this goction is the
dovelopmant and working of gravel beds; ono plont
roprasanting a veluo of one million dollors in ime
provements elono.

Savaral choeose faotories and large dairies are
also locatod in tho vioinity. Tho only certified
dairy in Alameda County, tho Moadowlari Dairy, is also
looated at Pleasanton on the Castlewocod Country Club
road and is open to visitora at all times, It is in-
speoted at bi-monthly intervals by the University of
California votorinonry division; the workmen are undor
constant medical supervision and the milk, bottled ot
the dairy, is protocted by a doublo cop, This milk s
distributed throughout the bay region,

Anothor Pleasanton institution ieo tho flose Avenue
Cottage School dovoted to child guidance and conducted
by bDr. V. H, Podatata. In o happy, homa onvironment,
children rogeive instruction in roading and any othor
subjoots in which thoy may noed spooiel attention,
They nre allowod to keop pots, and to enjoy oamping,
horsoback riding, danoing, music and other socinl aot-
ivities,

The formor Hocienda del Fozo de Veronu, trano-
formad into tho Castlowood Country Club, ia still among



tho show places of Alemeds County. Situated on rolle
ing woodsd hills feoing tho pioturcsque Amador Valley,
the club's 510 acros include & §$200,000,00 golf course,
outdoor swimming pool, polo and pienic grounds and the
impoping clubhouse, The landsoaping of tho cstate woa
dono by the late Luther Burbank, After soquiring tho
grounds and buildinge, the prosent manngemant spont
more than $500,000,00 in improvamants consisting of
furnishings, o heating plent, a golf course, & pool,
tenniac courts and a toproom decornted in modorniotic
n'cylo. A riding sochool and miles of scenic bridle
trails among tho hills are also available for guosts.
Th~ club casino will accomodate 260 guosts at banquete
and the main dining room seats 150 and aocomodations
aro provided for savonty-five overnight guesto.

The story of tho old hnooiendn is worth ropeating.
In 1800 Senator George Hearst had chosen Fleasanton as
a dosirableo location for his homo, Heolenda del Fozo
de Verona (The House of the Woll of Verons), as woll
ng. for his renowed stables, The nams of the estate
1a derived from the Italian ocity of Homoo and Jullet,
where Mrs. Hoorst hod bousht a beautiful old well curb
whioh she imported to Pleasanton.

Tho hnoiends was designed in accoxdanco with Spon-
teh arohitcotural tradition. Reminipoent of o micelon,



the house wus constructed with square towers, red tilo
roof, wrought iron baloonios and orcam-colored walls.
Asido from its oxtornal beauty, it woa ovormoro famed
for 1ts unfailing hospitality; in tho courss of o yoor
many thousands of distinguishod visitora to tho atate
and many whom Mra, Hosrst had como in contact with dur-
ing hor philanthropic work at tho Univeraity of Coliforw
nio wore entorsained at the haoionda, She ccnverted
o lorgo part of the grounds into o flower garden and
ahippod hundreds of boxos of tho choloest blooms to
dan Franoiuoo hospitals,

Hor gonorosity extended alsc to the lost of the
Indlons, a remant of the originnl tribo which had
once inhabited the rogion and in 1904 che allawed them
to sottle on hor ostate and form a small villago,

Howadays, ocwift motoxr cars pass to and fro slong
the splondid highways of Plessanton Township, nnd prose
perous farms and ranches give a sailing aspact to tho
gsoona, GChanges have como with tho years, but they
have boon kind to this lovely country~-sido,.

It fo now ono hundred cnd oloven years sinoe Den
Joso Maria Amador ocame into this beautiful wvalloy that
ptill bears hic neama ond it io a grooious thought that
oould ho roturn, he would seco no chango to sudden his
hoart but only th manifold signs of happiness cnd proge

pority.






Eden Township



EDER TOUNSHIP

‘The territory embraced within the boundaries of
Eden Township is an irregular tract of land containing
155.5 square miles and nearly 100,000 acres.

From a point Just south of Hedwood Psak the boundary
runs southeast to Laks Chabot, then turns weat, skirt-
ing the northorn boundary of San Leandro and ending near
the southern lins of the Oakland Municipal Alrport. The
northern boundary (the Contrs Coste County line) passes
southeast from Redwood Peak to about three miles from
the tomn of Dublin. Tho line then turns south for three
or four miles and veers southwost to tho bay, pasaing
about o mile north of Alvarado. Citizens of Oaskland who
assooiete Edon Towmship with Heywerd and Sen Lorenzo may
find it difficult to wisualize e part of the township
lying just behind the Joaquin Miller property in the
suburbs of their own city., Eden is bounded on the north
by Contra Cosata County, on the West and northwest by
Brooklyn Township, on the sast by Pleasanton Township,
on the south by Washington Townsghip end on tha west by
San Francisoo Bay.

Several changes have been made in the original bound-
aries of the township fixad by the first Court of Ses-
niog; of Alamads County, at its initial meeting in Alva-
rado on Juno 6, 1853, A petition to divide the township



221

was submitted to the Board of Supervisors at the tims
Pleasanton Township was orecatod in 1902, At the heoar-
inz, a protest vwas made against any division and three
citizens were at hand to defend the protest. No ona
wag present In behelf of the division, hence the Board
of Supervisors unanimously denied the petition,

The terrain of Eden Township may be divided into
three sections, from west to east: First, e narrow strip
of tide lands end sclt marshes along the bay shore; then
o fertile plain admirably adapted to diversified agri-
culture, and finally the foothillas of the Coast Range.

Among many streems which rise in these foothills,
San Leandro Creek and San Loranzo Creek are the most
important, although numerous smaller streams flow through
various canono and valleys in tho Townchip. BEach water
course flows through its own valley and, excopt in the
dryest years, thessa streams furnish an ample supply of
water for fields end orchards. Castro Valley is the
largeat of the valleys, but Cull, Crow, Eden and Palomares
Valleys, though small and narrow, add both to the beauty
and to the fertility of the Township.

. Everywhere the landscepe 1s varied and besutiful -
mountains on the east, on the sunset side the everchange
ing bay, and smiling fields between,

San Leandro Creek, with its source far up in the
Bé}kaley'nillu behind the town of Piedmont, empties its
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waters into Lake Chabot, an imfortant resarvoir of the
Zest Bay Munieipal Utility District. The overflow from
the leke continues as San Leandro Cresk until it flows
into Sen Leesndro Bay, end in early Spanish deys a busy
ambarcadero at this point served the padres of Mission
San Jose, San Leandro Bay is well knmown to QOaklanders
as tha body of water north of the Municipal Afirport. A
few miles south of the airport, where 3an Lorenzo Cresk
empties directly into San Francisco Bay an embarcadero
known as Hobert's Landing was long ago the shipping
point for produce from noarby farms,

The olimate is very agreecable; there are fewer
cold winds than in the northern townships and consider-
8bly less fog, &nd the high percentage of warm, sunny
days is beneficisl to crops and enhances the beauty of
the country-side. It is not surprising thet cherry or-
chards thrive snd even crowd their way into the towns
of Sen Leandro and Hsyward, as if grudging any of this
rich soil to streets and sidewalks. Other fruits and
berries abound ond the area is at the present time
aminent for its horticultural developmsnt. Garden truck
espeainlly peas, tomatoes and rhubarb grow sbundantly in the
rich black soil.

Ths firast ploncer to settle in the towmship was
Don Jose Joaquin Estudillo. Don Jose, native Conlifornien,



223

thes son of Captein Maris Estudillo, alecalds of San
Francisco in 1836, settled with his family near San
Leandro Creek not far from the present site of the oity
of San Lesndro., On Junuary 8, 1837, he made his first
petition to the Constitutional Governor of the Depart-
ment of California for e tract of land, but doocuments
conveying the grant wore lost and he ronewed his eap-
lication on June 28, 1842, The grant finally acuthorized
was desoribed as "bounded on the north by the arroyo

of Sen Lorenzo, without embracing the lands whioh the
soid Indiens cultivate; and on the west by the bay.”
This lend was later involved in a long process of liti-
gation before the United States courts,

Two daughters of the Estudillos married Americans
and it was probably on this sccount that the family
waathered the stormy period of the Ameryican conqusst more
succossfully than most of the other Spanish landownors
in Celifornia.

Tho Cestroan and the Sotos were the noxt settlers.
Castro built his home within the limits of the present
town of Hayward; Soto occupiled a traot of land that now
includes the village of San Lorenzo. Two othor Mexicen
grants were embraced within the boundaries of the present
Townsohip, the Sobrante grant in the northeast and the
Vallajo grant in the south, Ths uncertainty of boundaries
brought sbout disputes over property lines between these
various ranches and emboldened American squatters to halp

themselves to many & broed nore.



The lives of these early Celifornia landowmors
suggests o foudal or manorial pattorn. Numorous cattle
roanmed the walleys and hillsides; tracto of land wore
dovoted to the raising of grain and other foodstuffs;
wants woere few, moans for their gratification ebundant;
Indiens wore Lriondly and many of them were cumployoed
at vaious tasks on the ranchos. Of the soveral Indian
ranchorias in the township, ons was near the prosont
gite of the County Infirmary end another fronted San
Leandro and San Lorenzo Creeks. 'The liwves of the Span-
ish dons wore passod in undisturbed tranquillity until
land-hungry smoriocans errived to deostroy their happi-
ness and soourity.

Strange to say, it was the sloughs and marshes of
BEdon Townahip that first attracted the Amoricans. wWild
geepo, ducks and ourlews in abundance flooked on the
bay shore and those game fowl brought & fanoy prioce in
San Francisco markets. But besidos the inducoment of
profit, the sport of hunting naturally attracted many
of the pioneers. Thore aro ssveral versions of the be-~
ginning of this hunting. One story hasc it that in the
month of December 1849, Thomas W. Mulford, Moses Tloks,
A. R. Biggs, E. Minor Smith, and W. C. Saith landod near
the Bstudillo mansion, pitched a tont and bogan shooting
watorfowl with most gretifying succoss. Tho othor
account seys that Captain Roberts and his pariner Thompson



dooided to try thoir luck in this hunter's paradice,
and in the fall of 1850 made thoeir way up a slough,
pasged the spot which later bocamo Robarts' Landing,
at the mouth of San Lorenzo Creck, tied up their boat,
and enjoyed somo rare sport.

At that timo the only Amoricen living in the towmn-
ahip was a man named fierd, According to somo accounts,
in 1851 Ward was already marriaed to one of Zstudillo's
daughters; but in any case, ho onjoyed coxdiel rolations
with the family. W®illiem Davis, who had married Senorita
Marie Estudillo at a grand wodding nt Mission Doloxos,
San Francisco, in November 1847, was also high in the
confidence of the Estudillos. At a later poriod Davis
made his home in San Leendro and both he and Ward took
an sctive part in defending the rights of the Estudillo
fanily in their conflict with squattors. With tho ox-
coption of these two men howovor, it does net appear
that Amoricans had made sny significant stay in Eden
Township up to the time that Roborts and Thompson started
on thoir hunting oxpoedition in 1850, Ho one seems to have
oooupied eny lend for agricultural purposes; certainly
bofore. 1852 thore wore fewer than a score of Americans
in the township.

Chanoe pomotimes played a part in the county's
dovelopment. It was moroly by chence that 7illiem Hay-
wvard omme to Eden Townohip. Roturning frum an unsuccess—
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ful venture in tha minesn, he ontered the Livermore
roglon quite by accident and wvas so impresssd with tho
growth of wild oats in the San Ramon and Pacheco Val-
loys that he decided to take a contract to out some

hay 1n the vl‘ninity of the proesont villege of Dublin.

He bought moythes in Hartinez, continuecd the mowing for
a time and then mowved on toward San Francisco Bay.

His route led around Hublin, through Palomares Canon,
uliore he pitched his tant and bogan to shoot doer. Tho
land he was hunting on happonod to be a part of the
Caotro grant ond Don Guillormo was not disposed to
tolorate troespassers on any of his property. Nevertheless
the mattor ended amiocably; Castro offersd land furthor
down the wvnlley on torms acceptable to Heyward, the
wanderor sottled down and the final outcome was the towm
which now bears his nome.

Cagtro ond HEayward liwved as neighbors on the
friendly terms of Cslifornia's "Golden Age™”, but that
ogo wag passing. T™e tide was turning in favor of the
Amoricans. How the groat Spanigh fomilies declined
and how American occupancy was consolidated is woll
illustrated by the misfortuncs of the Castro family.
Guillermo castro, at the time of his agroecment with
Hayward, was the owner of six lecsgues of land, and om-
ployed on his rancho sbout 100 persons, inocluding Moxi-
onng, Indiens and South Amoricans. In 1852, when ho
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went gouth to purchase more cattle for his vest range,
Castro made his first mistake. To increase hisc herds
wos logicel enough; 1t seems to have been a period of
oxpansion because Davis was buying in tho gsame merkot
for the Estudillo rancho, But Cestro had the gambling
habit. The $35,000 he had teken to buy cettle was lost
and he returnsd home with neither money nor cattle,

Four years lator he wos compelled to mortgage his runch.
To liquidate this morigage, portions of his land had

to be sold to Hayward, Hughes, Maddox, Corey and others,
The sales netted him bstween eipght and ten thousand
dollars which he spont without profit in San Francisco.
Again he wos compelled to mortgage his property - this
timo to Atherton, 2 resident of San Mateo County, who, in
1864, bought Castro's remaining interest outrisht for
$30,000. Castro and his family left for South Ameriea,
and only his son Louis &nd a daughter who was married

to one of the Peraltas, remained in Californie.

The American settlers considored Guillermo Custro
ane of the finsat of the Spanish dons. His son later
booame county surveyor - one of the few native Californions
able to cdjust himselfl to tha Amarjican regime., Davis
commants on theoe Spanish Californians:

"I distinotly romember,"” hs says, "how they im-
pressed me when I first saw them, as a boy in 16831 and
18533 - a race of men of large stature and of fine, hand-



gomo appearance.,” Davis attridbutos thoir deolins t0
“tho unjust troatmont they rocoived from tho Amsrican
govornmont, in the mattor of thoir proporty”. Davis
nlno. condomns the lawyers and squattors who by ono
monns and another obtained possossion of extonsive
Spanish lands. The Spuniards at rirst attompted to
dofond themsolves but soon beoame disheartonod. Sons
of fine families grew up in want and poverty. Thereo
woro somo oxcoptions and Louis Castro was ono of them,

According to Mr, Mulford, thore wore no permanont
foroign sottlors in Eden Townohip and no houseos ox-
copting the homes of tho Spaniards, an Indion hut
vhore tho comotery ot San Loronzo is located, and an
Indion ranchoria on the site lator occupiod by the
County Hospital, Mulford built a "ton by twolve"
cadin in the opring of 1850, which ho usod as & cook
shaok. Captain Roberts also ¢cazo in 1850, cs wa havo
soon ond built his wharf at that timo, Hoyward ar=-
rived in 1801.

Aftor 1852 population and businoss inoroased
rapidly. Tho lendinges on tho various sloughs besoomo
shipping contors and maintained thoir importance
dospito railroad compotition. A4s lato as 1878 it
could still bo said that "threco landings upon the
bay do tho groater part of tho heavy freighting.”

The piloncors in this type of transportation wore



Captain Roberts, Chisholm, Vicks, Barron and MNulford.

The firat important crops raised by Amerioans
ware potatces and grain; but nos early cs 1878 horti-
culture wao listed as the leading industry of the
Township with the mogt extensive orchards in the county.
Horticulture wos introduced by £. T. Crane ond made
this digtrict nationally fomous through the afforts
of li{lliam Mook end E, Leowelling.

San Leandro is the oldeat towm in the ontire
Township, In 16850 the only sign of a settlement south
of Son Leandro Creek was the residence of the Estudillo
family and a Mexican school house; end yet, within
four years San Leandro bacamg the county seat of Ala-
mada County. One of the first men to rocognize the
importance of tﬁo gite of San Leandro as a busineas
contor was E. D, Block, a native of Bavnria, who had
comos to the United Stetes as a young man and had
rooched California in 18562, In looking about for a
promising location for a store, he seleoted San Leanw
dro and established his business there in 1853. Ten
years later Block opened another store in Oakland.

By 1857 the village had prospered to such a degres
that it could advertise the place as a resort for
"tired city business men", and the Oszliforniz Farmer
refors to San Leandro as e "delightful villege.” Ths
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town alresdy had & hotel, tho Zgtudillo House -~ its
proprietor the sams A, R, Bigga who came to Eden
Towvnship to shoot wild fowl in the fall of 1849. By
1876 it ooculd truly be said: "The incorporated town
of San Lesndro is undoubtedly one of the prottiest,
most desirsble and best managed in the State., Its
strects nre kept in good ordor, its houses are of

an oxcellent class, and its taxes light.” Werd Avenus
extended to the foothills and was lined on both sides
with beautiful trees,.

Portuguese came to the vioinity in considerable
numbers, and received favorable notice in a contemporary
nowspaper: “Thers uars many Portugusse in the Township
who oooupy small ferms end thrive abundantly, and are
found to be reiiablo farm hands.," They built a hamlot
known os Chicken Lane, and made a comfortable living
by raising vegetsbles and poultry. In our own day
the community still retains a numerous Portuguese popu-
lation,

Holding the status of county seat from 1856 to
1873, undoubtedly eccelerated a change in Sen Leandro
from rural to urban character. Fram April to Avgust
1855 the town was the do facto sont of government, but
by order of the District Court the seat of Justice was
returned to Alvarado and remained there until en act

230



231

of tho Legislature in 1856 deoclored San Leandro to
bo the logal County Seat of Alamoda County.

Thoro wWore only three buildings within tho limita
of San Loandro in 1855 - the Zptudillo homa, which
burned that year, Estudillo Hotol, built in the spring
of 1855, and a combined saloon and stagoe depot. A
fourth building was orected in the fall of that year
by Jim Teylor for a Mr, Eirschfoldor, who opened a
store which he sold after two yoors to Z. D. 3look.
On the 10th of July, 1855, a temporary Court House
was completed at n cost of $1200. It was nothing
more than a framo building 30 x 60 foot, and 1Z foot
high, locatod on & block of land donated by the
Astudillo estate for County purposcs, Prior to this
date the County paeid rent for officos. At the first
mooting of o rogularly elected Board of Supervisors,
April 2, 1855, Goorge W, Leland prosonted & bill of
961,64 for tho rontal of court room spacs, and a dill
for $100 wus prosented at the samo time "for ront of
Court Houso at Alvarado”. Lator tho Board of Super-
visors rented temporary quarters in San Leandro for
375 & month. It makes an interesting picture of
humble beginnings, far removed from tho presont
splondid and extensive housing of the County govorn-

mont.
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Manufacturing began early in Eden Township., Tho
Swoopstake Plow Factory was ono of the first important
industries, and since the timd of San Lesandro's incorpora-
tion in 1872 industrisl developmont has besn constant.
At tho present time San Leandro is a thriving city of
more than 16,000 inhabitants, and is growing ycar by
year; building permits quadrupled botwoen 1921 and 1927.
The churchos, banks, theatros and hotels, three grammar
sohools and a junior school are modern in svery respect.
Industry, in the past fow yoars has grom so rapidly that
tho slogan The Cherry City fells short of adequate
deseription. Nevertheless the annual Cherry Festiwal
attracts wids attention.

Hayward is olosely linked 4in its origin with tho
fortunca of the man whose name it bears; its begin-
nings wore very modest. william Hayward, like Jas. B.
larue at San Antonio, firast ostablished himsalf in a
tont, but such primitive beginnings were never permitted
to rotard the californis pioneer; they were rathor an
incontive to energetic action. William Hayward's
firnt business venture inocluded & dairy farm and a
store, ond he conducted these entorprises while still
using his tent as a home and headquarters. Within a
gshort tims he built Hayward's Hotel. Through his no-



quaintance with James B. Laruc, who had omployed him
in a deiry in San Francisco, Hayward purchnsed cows
and establighed his om dairy farm,

Hayward's hotel was for many years the tomm's
chief attraction; 1t was the polling place of the
Tirst election preoinct in Hayward after formation
of the County in 1853 and there are frequent rafer-
ences to it in the press, where it is desoribed as
a Tinoe hotel commanding an extensive view of the
beautiful, fertile valley of San Lorenzo,

"Yery fow spots in the wvalley are more en-
chanting, and to the inwlid, this is a
moat tempting home. Mr. Hayward, tho owmer
of tho Hotel, is a publio spirited working-
man. He has done much to improve the roads
in the vicinity of the hotel, having built
at his own expense, far beyond any olaim
of a pecuniary neture. He has alpo built
a fino bridge acrosmss the oreek for publioc
use, ot his om coet. At the present time
he 1s improving his Hotel and grounds; ho
has ereoted a fine Hall for festive ocococa~
pions, and made all the needed preparations
to it his house for the summer season as

a pleasant place for the traveler, the in-
valid, or the sscker of pleasure."” (Cali-~
fornia Farmer, May 9, 1856)

Hoyward himsolf inserted a lengthy edvertisement
in the Celifornis Farmer of May 13, 18567, in vhich he
graciousnly conocurred with everything the editor had
said about his hotsl.

"A good stable is attached to the Housa. Horses
in saddle or harness can be furnished for the
pleasantest road scenss in the country - the
Springs, the Mission Gardens, the Fishing Grounds,
and other places furnishing abundant sources of



amusement foxr the banefit of inwvallds

or persons desiring rscrestion and

pleasurs,”

In 18064 e laong forward step was taken when a rural
school, first esteblished in 1855, was moved into Hayward
end mariod the beginning of educational facilitios that
ono® day would rank among the best in theo stata.

In its iassus of April 11, 1807, the samz journml
desoribes the dewvolopmant of the town in the next decade.
"In ten years tims 1t has bcoome more than a

hotel resort. In our last wo spoke of the

improvements of Hoywards and the rapld in-

orease of that town within two years and

since the cattls market had boen ostablished

there."

Among tho improvements notod is & large brick ware-
house with a capacity of 10,000 tons, situated close to
the reilroad lino; and whon the reporter visited Hayward
ho was impressed by the 100,000 sacks of grain stored in
one warchouse. The paper also notaed that "Mr. Brown hop
built & largs hall, In this a Lodge of Good Templars,
numboring 125 members, ladies and gontlemen, hold their
mooting. This lodge is prospering,.”

But there is a less attractive side to this ploture
of aivic enterpriss:

"#e noted also, and with much regret the warious

saloons that open at little places at the corners.

These we lnow are always apt to go to new places

to grub ns hens go to new earth to serateh and

poock, but they elways do more harm than good.

Drinking and plsying and gambling eats away the
time ond money of men that should find better
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employment. In this new town thore are some
ssven to ten of these ploces vhere idlers are
found, which we very much regret to notice."

About 1865 new enterprisses hed begun to appear - a
eattlo market, the grain ware-~houss montioned above, and
a rlour mill wvhich was not completed however until 1867.
This mill was driven by a thirty-five horse power ongine
end hed a capacity of fiwo barrels of flour per hour.
Wheat was worth $2.60 to $2.75 per hundredweight at the
mill, and flour brought from £7.50 to $8,00 per hundred
pounds,

The earthquake of 1868 caused considerable damags
but the energy of the inhabitants is well i1llusirated
by the vigorous program of rebuilding they immadistely
put on foot. In the issue of the Californie Farmer,
December 15, 1870, very interesting date are given con-

¢orning the progress of Heyward.

"Tan years ago (1860) the populntion of Heyward
was about one hundred inhasbitants. Haywrd's
Hotel, two stables, two or three stores, a
Blacksmith and Ploughmakers shop, a few saloons,
and 8 few housos constituted about all the placs.
How (1870) Haoyward olaims about one thousand in-
habitants. Hayward's Hotel, the principal ons,
is onlarged, its actiwe proprietor estill at work
improving the surroundings, two smaller hotels,
three stores, two stables, a number of saloons,
(no benofit o any place) the large Plow and
Wagon ahog of J. L. Riverre. Post Office and
Expross Office, end now the Railroad Depot of
the wentern Pooific R.R., and hore the Extensive
Grain Werehouse of P, Edmunson, 88%1.1’ ond also
the Hayward's Flouring Mills. At the center of
the towm are tho Hells of the Rechabites, and
of the Masons and I,0.0.7."

> A straw~burning engine factory was operated by Mr.
Rice here until he moved the plant to San Francisco some-
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time before 1876. Rice's ongines were famous throughout
the ntate.

On March 11, 1876, Hayward was incorporated. Its
onnols after this date no longer belong to the history
of Tural Alsmeda County. It is still closely assoolated
with the agricultural activities of the County; 1t is
the center of the largest egg and chicken industry in
the State; it is nationally famous for its squabs, and
hes large ocenning and preserving planta for frulits and
vegetables., The population is about 6000.

San Lorenzo was the direct product of squatterism.
ghen Herlen found thet he could not make a satisfactory
living on the farm he had boen working in Washington
Township he moved ferther norxth.

"So here I was on bed rock again; or rather,
I was down below it, I sold my place to
Honry Smith and went to Guillermo Castxo
end to the widow Barbara Soto, and tried

to leape same land from them. They owned all
the land for miles sround the town of Squatter-
ville, or San lorenzo, as it is now called.
But they refused to lease any to me or to
anyoneé. On the north side of San Lorenzo
Creek there is a pilece of excvellent land,
whore formerly lived & number of Indisns
and vhich was, at the time of which I write,
olaimed by Castro and by the Estudillos of
San lLeandro, Theore was much doubt among

us Amaricens in that neighborhood of its
belonging to either. So I determined to
get together a number of farmers and take
up claims on this disputed plece of land.

I accordingly notified a number of friends;
wa met together and formed an association
for the taking up of cleims on this land.

I had the first choice, and selected the
place afterward sold by me to Mr. E. T.
Crane, and now belenging to him., The
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others took up thoir rospective claims and we
christened our plece 'Squatterville’, all
egrecing to build housos at once."

According to Herlon's account this happened in the
yoear 1851, & dste confirmsd by Warren Brown, County Sur-
veyor of Contra Costa County in his report to the Sur-
voyor-General in 1852: "Towns and villages: lartinez,
Oaklond and Squatterville." For some tims it was puzzling
to find the exact location of Squatterville, as nearly
cvory new town was a "squatterville™ by origin - even
Ookland; but it may be taken for granted that Harlen
reforrod to San Lorenzo,

With the growth of industry at San Lorenzo there
wng a demand for laborers whioh gave riss to an acute
probleom affecting the peace of the community. The Oak-
land Tribune of July 11, 1900, gave a terse account of
the whole affair:

“San Lorenzo. There is much complaint among
ranchers and fruit growers of this section
against the action of Brooklyn Township con-
stables in arresting mon who leave Oakland
in this direction to look for work., The
frult growers claim that these constables are
on the lookout for anyone whom they can ar-
roost with impunity in order to get the fees
allowed for every arrest made. . . . Hundreds
of honest msn, driven by necessity to seak
worik in the Country have been unjustly ar-
rosted and imprisoned until now men are
afraid to atart out in this direction. . . .
Now that the fruit is ripe and orops ready
to be gatherod, mon are in demsnd, but none
aro to be hed,

One of the fruit growoers hired a man,

him money in advence with which to pay his
board bill, The man was arrosted before he
renchad the ranch,



The Board of Supervisors moved todey to end
labor troubles in the pea fields of southern
Alamada County by ordering all able-~bodied
worksrs in the &xea, soms 4,000 in number,
stricken from the county relief rolls.

The sotion was taken after Mayor Frank Cunha

- of Hayward and Justice of the Pecce Allen G,

Norris of Centerville had appeared bafore

the board of representatives of the Pen CGrow-

ers Association of southern Alamsda County.

They told the board membexrs that ranches of

the district can provide work for 4,000 persons

in the rields now until September and the

workers can enrn up to 33 per day.”

Industry began at Sen Lorenzo in 1853, when John
Boyle opened & bluoksmith’s shop. After Boyle's death,
the shop wasz teken over by Honry Smyth, under whoss
managemant business began to flourish ond expand. The
following yoer A. E. Crane built the San Lorenzo house
and Daniel 0lds opened a store, An attempt was made
to establigh e fruit drying plent using the Alden
procoss but this proved a failura.

To=day, while San Lorenzo no longer uses the fleet
of ships which once ftransported the products of that
vieinity to San Francisco, her packing houses give enm~
ploymant to large numbars of people. The Southern
Pacific Ruilroad which pusses through the towns carries
awey an abundence of produce,. A grest notionsl powder
company hus 2 factory here, and owrrants, berries,
vegetables and deciduous f{ruits add to the wealth of

the town ond its environs. HNoxr iz the social side of
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1ife neglacted; there are Catholic ond Protestant churches,
three grammar schools, a county library and two hotels.

It is not certain Just when the little town of Mt.
Eden was founded, but several ploncers settled in the
vioiniéy as early as 1852. The growing population was
predominantly German.

The California Farmor, February 15, 1861, records
the "discovery” of Mt. Eden:

"We found & new road, o2 now villaege, & now store,
and quite a new prospect, on the route from
Haywerd's Hotel to Alvarado, This place is
called 'iMount Eden' although 1t is on & plain,
It 1s quite & fertile spot, and several larie
houses have been erected, where farms, orchards,
and gardens will soon make the place 8 little
*Eden’, indeed.

As an attraction to this place, Mr, Wim. Myers
hag located o stors, which he intends to make
a plecsant place of rasort for ths villegars.
He has a fine stock of sll kinds of goods,
which he will sell st low prices. Besides this,
he says that if the Fermers will only give him
a ghare of their patronage, he will give them
the best goods at the lowest rates, and he
will make a Reading-room for their comfort and
improvemsnt, and will have all the best papers
to interest them, HNow farmers! you should
patronize such & place, Mr. Myers is en old
Pionser, and it will de to your intereost to

do all you can to build up this Eden Village
in your own vioinity, for it will creaie &
demand for Farmers' Produce. Eden is on the
route from Canstro Valley to Alvarado - a greatl
thoroughfare.”

Notwithstanding that Mt. Eden is an unpretentious
little country town, it hes a certain importance or its
own, Tens of thousands of carnations are ghipped from

this section to Los Angeles and San Diego. The f(lowers



are out in the late afternoomn, travel eouth ell night
and aro in the Southern California mnrket the next
morning. One of the lorgost nurseries on the coast
io here and fruit and vegetables grow in abundence.

In Edon Townghip to-dsy much of the work of
harvesting its Tich crops 18 done by migratory labor or
by workers from San Isandro, or Haywnrd, throe milos
to the oast.

Castro Valley was ant one time the grazing ground
Tor tho cottle of iission San Joso, but when the missionz
wors ssoularized Guillermo Casiro applied for and re~
a2ived a land grant thot included this vnlleoy. Amsrican
sottlors later turned large porfions of the wvalloy into
fiolds of grain, 8Stock raising continued howsver; Manuel
Munos' horso breeding ostablishment doveloped not only
draft horses but also thoroughbreds for the Ploasanfon
rance traock,

About 1900 Castro Volley underwont a third trans-
formantion when the raising of chickens on a lorge soale
begon. Among the more important poultry companies arse the
Heyward Rio Linda Hatchery, Perry Hatchery, Castro Valley
Hatchery, California State Hatchory, Canbert Brothers
Hatchary, Walter Cook Hatchery, and Lorimer Breeding Farm.

A notable cattle ranch among thoss locatsd in the
Castro wvalley is the one omned by X¥r., J. H. Rowell. 3Since
..1929 Hr. Rowell has promoted an annusl rodeo in the
valley, the grandstand baing loceated on his ranch Tacing



the main highway. In 1930 W. S. Froeman of the Leghora
Breeding Farm won first prize at the Hetional thite
leghorn Club Meat at St. Louis. Breeding of greyhounds
for the race tracks is a profitable business for Mr. C.
A« Rhodes.

Many new buildings are now under construction; the
Castro Valley Realty Company has built a number of new
residsences, and civic improvemsnts in the past few years
have besen NUMATrous.

That the history of Eden Township is not in any
large sens2 eventful, is strong evidence of that peace
and prosperdty which make the nams of this towmship
eppropriate. The account of its rise fto economfio import
ance belongs to the story of cities long ago incorporeted
and thet story is a part of the urban history of Alameda

County.
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